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DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
OFFICE OF FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
1155 DEFENSE PENTAGON
WASHINGTON, DC 20301-1155 MAR 30 2012

Ref: 00-F-1568

This is an interim response to your letter dated April 21, 2000, copy enclosed, to
the Defense POW/MIA Office (DPMO), which requested various records that you
identified as falling within 12 specified categories. Based on searches conducted by the
DPMO, a large number of records were located of which nine, totaling 29 pages, are
attached as partially responsive to your request. A final response to your request will be
provided when reviews of the additional responsive documents have been completed.

Sincerely,
S By
< Paul J. Jacobsmeyer
W2 Chief

Enclosures:
As stated
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Gilk, Clair, Maj, OSD/DPMO

From: Simpson, Lynn, Ms., OSD/DPMO

Sent: Saturday, April 15, 2000 9:38 AM

To: ‘brian.walters@gsa.gov'

Cc: : Beltran, Angel, Mr., OSD/DPMO; Marchi, David E., Mr., OSD/DPMO; Brian Walters;

Caswell, James; Daley, David; George Thompson; Gilk, Clair; Gravelle, James; Harvey, Joe;
John Amold; MacDougall, James; Marchi, David; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond, Melvin;
Sydow, C.; Talaber, Angela

Subject: Mission Area Analysis - Future Planning

As you know, the contrdct for the MAA ends 30 September. There are currently no plans to continue with a "phase I1I";
however, if the DASD decides he would like a foliow up to the work completed, we need to start planning now.

I would like to specifical y discuss this issue with you, Angel Beltran, and anyone from the MAA panel who is interested.
Since you are scheduled to be here on Tuesday, the 18th at 1:30 to discuss the SOW for the IS contract | suggest we
schedule this meeting at 2:30 for the same day. | am unable to meet after our regularly scheduled MAA meeting
scheduled for 24 April since | have another meeting at 9:00. :

Please let me know if you are able to attend. Thanks!
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Gilk, Clair, Maj, OSD/

DPMO

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Importance:

Nasarenko, Jennifer, Ms., OSD/DPMO
Tuesday, April 25, 2000 2:59 PM
John Amold; Daley, David OSD/DPMO; George Thompson
Brown, John, Mr., OSD/DPMO; Whitley, Kaye H., Ms., OSD/DPMO; Simpson, Lynn, Ms.,
OSD/DPMO; Sydow, C. Gary, Mr., OSD/DPMO; Gilk, Clair, Maj, OSD/DPMO; Richmond Jr.,
Melvin, Col, OSD/DPMO; Caswell, James,Mr., OSD/DPMO; Henley, Charles, Mr.,
OSD/DPMO; Greer, James, Mr., OSD/DPMO; Harvey, Joe, Mr., OSD/DPMO

- CoS Guidance i

High

-

The CoS followed up with the DASD on the subject of MAA interviews with Family and Veteran
representatjves. There is no requirement for DPMO to review proposed questions or screen a list of
perspectiveinterviewees.

Also, DPMO\w
organizations.

ill host @ meeting on (or about) 3 May with the leadership of key family and veteran
We would like Anser (George Thompson) to give a broad brush general overview of

the MAA. The details of the meeting are being coordinated by Larry Greer (PA).. More to follow.

Thanks,
Jennifer
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Gilk, Clair M. Maj

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
As you may know, Mr,

Monday at the Directq
another day to brief M

Advisory members of
members from their st

Colonel Mel Richmont
You may contact them

!

Simpson, Lynn
Friday, October 01, 1999 6:16 PM
DIRECTORS
Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Talaber, Angela M.; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Beltran, Angel L.; Mangente,
Brenda, Maj '
MAA Kick Off Meeting

Jones is now TDY on Monday; however, we are going forward with the official kick off meeting on
r's staff meeting. Anser will be here to brief the MAA and their strategy, etc. They will come back
r. Jones and answer any questions he may have. .

the MAA panel are also invited to attend the kick off on Monday. Directors may also invite other -

affs who will have some involvement with the MAA.

, Major Clair Gilk, and Ms. Jennifer Nasarenko are the primary subject matter points of contact.
if you have any questions.

Thank you.

----Original Message---—-

From: Simpscn, Lynn

Sent: Wednesddy, September 28, 1999 9:46 AM
To: Richmand Jr., Melvin E. Col

Cc: Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan

Subject: RE: quate on MAA

As we discused this m
meeting.

Thanks.

-----Original Message--

orning, | agree and will plan accordingly. Will be good to bring this up at this morning’s staff

From: Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col

Sent: Wednegday, September 29, 1999 6:27 AM
To: Simpson, Lynn

Cc: Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan

Subject: RE: Update on MAA

Lynn

I talked to Joe yesterday-suggesting that we schedule a meeting (probably this one you're talking about) in conjunction
with a staff meeting. Naturally, we would invite Bob Jones to attend unless he wants something separate. The object
would be for the ANSER team to brief ALL the directors on their plan and introduce themselves -- maybe one hour. |
think we need to get all the directors on board and the sooner the better. Before we get buy-in from our
constituency/customers, we should probably ensure we have buy-in throughout DPMO for the study as all will have

input. Might want t
or after the briefing

think?

Mel Richmond

-----Original Messa
Simpson
Tuesday,
Beltran, Angel; Caswell, James; Collura, Angelo; Gilk, Clair; Gravelle, James; Harvey, Joe; Liotta, Jay; Man,, Gregory; Marchi, .

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject: Update

Ms. Holly Carr

Contracting Off
shortly after tha

Next major ste

suggest to Bob that the Program Manager spend a few minutes with him in his office either before
so that Bob can have some one-on-one time with the head of the ANSER team. What do you

e-...
Lynn
September 28, 1999 6:13 PM :
David; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond Jr, Melvin; Talaber, Angela

on MAA

ﬂrepared her documentation for the contract award. She expects the information back from her
cer by 9:30 tomorrow morning (Wednesday, September 29, 1999) and hopes to make the award

L.

p for the panel is to attend a "kick off" meeting which will reiterate the major players and get the

1




process into action. Holly says that is the point where the clock starts ticking so we do not expect the meeting to
last more than one hour. _

At the conclusion of the kick off meeting, Major Gilk and Jennifer Nasarenko will serve as the primary Subject
Matter Experts for the MAA; however, the company may discuss other issues with others from the panel and
others in DPMO. Holly will be back in touch with us to schedule the kick off meeting. | suspect it will be next

week.

Thanks to all for their participation in this process. Will-keep all posted.
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Gilk, Clair M. Maj

From: Simpson, Lynn

Sent: Tuesday, October 05, 1999 1:53 PM
To: Greer, James L.

Cc: Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Nasarenko, Jennifer
Subject: ' RE: MAA Kick Off Meeting Follow up

1) Major Gilk and/or Jennifer will coordinatate all the meetings; therefore, you are on stand by for an actual meeting.

2) You are not required to be present on the 18th. That is specifically for the contract requirements and process items.

Let me know if you have any other questions.

Thanks.
-----Original Message-t--
From: Greer, James L. .
Sent: Monday, October 04, 1999 6:27 PM
To: Simpsan, Lynn

Subject: RE: MAA Kick Off Meeting Follow up
Importance: High '

Lynn,

There’s some confusing language here.- Am | to stand by until an ANSER person contacts me to have a discussion?
And, should | plan|to attend the meeting on the 18th, or not?

Larry

----Original Message—--

From:  Simpsop, Lynn

Sent:  Monday, October 04, 1999 6:24 PM

To: DIREGTORS

Ce: Foti, Anthony LtCol; Beltran, Angel; Caswell, James; Collura, Angelo; Gilk, Clair; Gravelle, James; Harvey, Joe; Liotta, Jay; Man,,
Gregory; Marchi, David; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond Jr, Melvin; Talaber, Angela

Subject: MAA Kick Off Meeting Follow up

| appreciate your participation in this morning’s kick off meeting for the MAA.

As you know, the Anser team will need to talk with a variety of people involved in the recovery and accounting
areas. In ordef to maintain some sense of order to the contacts, | would ask that subject matter meetings be
arranged through the subject matter points of contact -- Major Gilk and Jennifer Nasarenko. - This is a tremendous
undertaking and it is imperative that we continue to coordinate properly on all these issues. At the same time, we
need to provide the Anser team with enough information so that they can produce a quality and accurate product.

Holly Carr and | are the primary points of contact related to the contract, costs associated with the contract, and.
any changes required in the contract. Therefore, any meetings, TDY or other aspects of the contract should be
discussed with the subject matter experts and me so that we can ensure the contract stays on the right course and
is executed within the established prices and deadlines.

Individual staff members should not contact the Anser team directly, but should raise the issue to the appropriate
person so that the potential for miscommunication is minimized. The meeting scheduled for the 18th should
include Colonel Richmond, Major Gilk, Jennifer, me and the Anser Team so we can ensure the processes are
working. Any specific issues of concern should be raised to my attention so that they may be addressed in that
meeting. o g

Again, thank you for your participation and please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or require
additional information. :

Thanks.
-----Original Message--—--
From:  Simpson, Lynn
Sent: Friday, October 01, 1999 6:28 PM




To: DIRECTORS
Cc: Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Talaber, Angela M.; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Beltran, Angel L.; Mangente, Brenda, Maj
Subject: MAA Kick Otf Meeting

As you may know, Mr. Jones is now TDY on Monday; however, we are going forward with the official kick off
meeting on Monday at the Director's staff meeting. Anser will be here to brief the MAA and their strategy, etc.
They will come back another day to brief Mr. Jones and answer any questions he may have.

Advisory members of the MAA panel are also invited to attend the kick off on Monday. Directors may also invite
other members from their staffs who will have some involvement with the MAA.

Colonel Mel Richmond, Major Clair Gilk, and Ms. Jennifer Nasarenko are the primary subject matter points of
contact. You may contact them if you have any questions.

Thank you.

--—--Original Message—- ' -
From: Simpson, Lynn

Sent: = Wednesday, September 29, 1999 9:46 AM
To: Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col

Cc: Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan

Subject: RE: Update on MAA

As we discused this morning, | agree and will plan accordingly. Will be good to bring this up at this morning's staff
meeting. :

Thanks.

----0Original Message-—-

From: Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 1999 6:27 AM
To: Simpsoh, Lynn

Cc: Harvey,/Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan

Subject: RE: Update on MAA

Lynn

| talked to Joe yesterday suggesting that we schedule a meeting (probably this one you're talking about) in
conjunction with a staff meeting. Naturally, we would invite Bob Jones to attend unless he wants something
separate. The object would be for the ANSER team to brief ALL the directors on their plan and introduce
themselves -- maybe one hour. | think we need to get all the directors on board and the sooner the better.
Before we get buy-in from our constituency/customers, we should probably ensure we have buy-in throughout
DPMO for the study as all will have input. Might want to suggest to Bob that the Program Manager spend a
few minutes with him in his office either before or after the briefing so that Bob can have some one-on-one
time with the head of the ANSER team. What do you think?

Mel Richmond
-----QOriginal Message-----
From: Simpson, Lynn
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 1999 6:13 PM
To: Beltran, Angel; Caswell, James; Collura, Angelo; Gilk, Clair; Gravelle, James; Harvey, Joe; Liotta, Jay; Man,,
Gregory; Marchi, David; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond Jr, Melvin; Talaber, Angela
Subject: Update on MAA

Ms. Holly Carr prepared her documentation for the contract award. She expects the information back
from her Contracting Officer by 9:30 tomorrow morning (Wednesday, September 29, 1999) and hopes to
make the award shortly after that.

Next mfjor step foyr the panel is to attend a "kick off" meeting which will reiterate the major players and get
the progess into action. Holly says that is the point where the clock starts ticking so we do not expect the:
meeting to last more than one hour.

At the conclusion of the kick off meeting, Major Gilk and Jennifer Nasarenko will serve as the primary
Subject|Matter Experts for the MAA; however, the company may discuss other issues with others from the -
panel and others in DPMO. Holly will be back in touch with us to schedule the kick off meeting. | suspect
it will be| next week.

kw
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PERSONNEL RECOVERY & ACCOUNTING
MISSION AREA ANALYSIS

Goals:

» Develop a methodology to implement the most effective use of budget,
resources, and technology to pursue the worldwide live recovery of
isolated personnel and post-hostility accounting while maintaining

_consistent policy, control, and oversight by FY 2001.

» Implement a unified system for the live recovery of isolated personnel,
post-hostility accounting and identification system by the end of FY
2002.

> Develop and apply scientific, technological and business process
breakthroughs on the issues of

v’ Collection, storage, analysis and dissemination of information on
covered personnel by the end of CY 2000. '

v’ Identification, location and authentication of missing personnel
worldwide by the end of CY 2001.

» Without|degrading the current accounting opportunities, transition all
historical accounting processes from prior conflicts to efforts triggers by
new information by FY 2004.

Process

Personnel Recovery: The MAA must examine the entire range of
personnel recovery, to include diplomatic, military (both conventional and
unconventional), and other means of recovering isolated personnel. It shall
Span recovery operations throughout the spectrum of conflict from small-
scale contingencies to major theater war and peacetime operations; and from
tactical to strategic levels. The analysis shall provide

» Construct for strategic and operational planning; analyze capabilities and
force structure (forces and materiel);

> identify deficiencies and excesses; identify requirements to change
existing doctrine, policy, organization, training, technology, etc.;

> assess risk and effectiveness; form a basis for Mission Needs Statements
and Operational Requirements Documents;




» and support simulations and modeling. It must also analyze the structure
and procedures for interagency coordination and cooperation so as to
maximize the USG’s ability to recover its personnel who become
isolated.

» examine how the process transitions from the personnel recovery process
(isolated live personnel) to the post-hostilities process of personnel
accounting.

Personnel Accounting/Remains Recovery: The MAA must analyze all
facets of the personnel accounting and remains recovery functions from
operational activities to diplomatic efforts to achieve the fullest possible
accounting of historical and future unaccounted-for. It shall

> Provide a detailed analysis of nﬁssiqﬁ, organizational structure and
associated budgets of:

v' DPMO

v' U.S. Army Central Identification Laboratory — Hawaii

v US. Army Casualty & Memorial Affairs Operations Center
v" Armgd Forces DNA Identification Laboratory

recovery program and its ability to handle requirements of the 21st

end organizational structures or mergers to best accomplish the
mission requirements.

» Consider the impact of interagency and Non-Governmental
Organizations (NGOs) on accounting policy and operations.
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Gilk, Clair M. Maj

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:
- Importance:
CLASSIFICATION: UNCI

CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

Nasarenko, Jennifer
Monday, February 28, 2000 7:29 AM
Caswell, James R.; Harvey, Joe B.: Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col; Simpson, Lynn; MacDougall,

James; Sydow, C. Gary; Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Daley, David
RE: ANSER Discussion

High

LASSIFIED

FEBRUARY 29™, . | .. .don't know what my fingers were thinking when | typed March. Thanks to all

who corrected me.

Jennifer

——-Original Message--—-
From: Caswell, James R.
Sent: Friday, February 25, 2000 2:05 PM
To: Nasaren%, Jennifer, Harvey, Joe B.; Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col: Simpson, Lynn; MacDougall, James;
Sydow, C. Gary; Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Daley, David
RE: ANSER Discussion :
Hijgh ,

: UNCLASSIFIED

Subject:
Importance:

CLASSIFICATION
CAVEATS: NONE|
TERMS: NONE

Sounds good to me.

-----Original Message-—---
From: Nasarenko, Jennifer
Sent: Friday, February 25, 2000 1:29 PM
To: Harvey, Joe B.; Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col; Caswell, James R.; Simpson, Lynn; MacDougall, James; Sydow,
Maj; Daley, David
ANSER Discussion
High

C. Gary; Gilk, Clair M.

Subject:
Importance:
pared to present information regarding mission & functions evaluation and
g with DPMO to shape the product into something usable to us and to them
state. They have created a chart (very preliminary draft) -- assigning events
1at they would like to share and discuss.

Anser is pre
begin a dial
for the end
to tasks -- tk

I have reserved the conference room from 1300 to 1500 on Tuesday, March 29%, Anser
has requested that the audience be limited to the addressees initially as it is not ready
for prime time.

Please let me know if anyone has any questions.

Thanks,
Jennifer




L4
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CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE
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Blue = Accounting’

Black = Personnel Recovery Conferences and Meetings Personnel Recovery and 'Accounting
Green = Both ‘ ) .

Host 4 Location

' SR
|__DPMO____[Fort Belvoir, VA
AEH H

v 1999

7
7]
SR

Current as of 10/21/99
. ") 1220 EST
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Gilk, Clair M. Maj

From: Simpson, Lynn

Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2000 8:50 AM

To: Brown, John A.; Caswell, James R.; Collura, Angelo J.; Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Gravelle, James F.
Col; Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan; MacDougall, James; Nasarenko, Jennifer, Richmond Jr.,
Melvin E. Col; Sydow, C. Gary :

Cc: Rush, Tawaunna M.; Wulff, Timothy R.; Foti, Anthony LtCol; Walker, Andrea; Beltran, Angel
L.; Marchi, David E.; Talaber, Angela M.

Subject: RE: Mission Area Analysis Future Planning — 27 April 00

CLASSIFICATION: UNCHASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE : -

Subject meeting has been cancelled. No news on rescheduling.

-----Qriginal Message--—

From: Simpson, Lynn

Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2000 7:28 PM

To: Brown, Johq A.; Caswell, James R.; Collura, Angelo J.; Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Gravelle, James F. Col; Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan;
MacDougall, James; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col; Sydow, C. Gary

Cc: Rush, Tawatinna M.; Wulff, Timothy R.; Foti, Anthony LtCol; Walker, Andrea; Beltran, Angel L.; Marchi, David E.; Talaber, Angela M.

Subject: FW: Mission Area Analysis Future Planning ~ 27 April 00

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

Reminder about the subject meeting tomorrow 27 April at 11:30 in the Main Confe.rence Room.

-----Qriginal Message-----

From: * Simpson, Lynn

Sent: Friday, April 21, 2000 3:55 PM

To: Brown, John|A.; Caswell, James R.; Collura, Angelo J.; Gilk, Clair M. Maj; Gravelle, James F. Col; Harvey, Joe B.; Liotta, J. Alan;
MacDougall, James; Nasarenko, Jennifer; Richmond Jr., Melvin E. Col; Sydow, C. Gary - ,

Cc: Talaber, Angela M.; Marchi, David E.; Beltran, Angel L.; Walker, Andrea; Foti, Anthony LtCol; Wulff, Timothy R.; Rush, Tawaunna M.

Subject: RE: Mission Area Analysis Future Planning — 27 April 00

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

Unfortunately, | was not able to find a day early next week to fit this meeting and am proposing the 27th at 11:30 in the
main conference room, Mel has a draft of a decision paper that we should be prepared to discuss. (Attached)

<< File: Decision memo on next steps.doc >>
The purpose of the megti

1) Discuss the decision memo and agree upon a desired approach

2) Determine who has the lead in drafting a Phase Ill requirements document
3) Estimate budget projections

4) Discuss issue of competition for contract if decision is approved to proceed

Please read the attached draft decision memo and come to the meeting with your ideas and suggestions. Also comé”
to the meeting prepared to discuss the items 1 - 4 listed above. ,

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks.
-----Original Message-----
From:  Simpson, Lynn )
Sent:  Tuesday, Apri| 18, 2000 8:42 PM




To: Caswell, James; Collura, Angelo; Gilk, Clair; Gravelle, James; Harvey, Joe; Liotta, Jay; MacDougall, James; Nasarenko, Jennifer;
Richmond Jr, Melvin; Sydow, Gary ;

Cc: Jones, Robert L.; Talaber, Angela M.; Marchi, David E.; Beltran, Angel L.; Walker, Andrea; Brown, John A.; Foti, Anthony LtCol;
Wulff, Timothy R.

Subject: Mission Area Analysis Future Planning

CLASSIFICATION]; UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

As | mentioned to you via the unclassified network, | have been thinking about the future planning required for any
phase lll implementation for the MAA. The contract ends 30 September and the DASD will be taking a hard look
at the findings and recommendations at that time. :

If he decides to moye into a phase Ill, we need to be prepared for all the actions required to plan for and budget
for any additional work. The preparation for these actions needs to occur between now and mid-June even though
Mr. Jones will not make a final determination on any phase Il until the current contract expires and he hasa -~
chance to review the work.

I met today with Mr) Brian Walters from FEDSIM, Colonel Richmond, Mr. Caswell, and Mr. Beltran to discuss the
necessary steps to prepare for future planning with the MAA. We focused on the requirements document

(Statement of Work), the competition/solicitation and the timing of actions. We left the meeting with the following
plan:

1) Mel is writing a draft decision paper for the DASD which will outline the issues regarding the MAA and any

future planning.
2) This draft paper will be sent to the MAA panel for review.

3) The MAA panel members will meet to discuss the draft decision memo and address any additional issues
that we may have overlooked. This meeting is tentatively scheduled for early to mid-week next week since we
want Mr. Harvey to be aware of the planning before his surgery. -

| want to ensure that the plan is properly coordinated and that we are prepared to implement the DASD's direction
if he decides to move forward. Please let me know if you have any questions or require additional information.

Reminder: The regularly scheduled bi-monthly meeting to discuss the MAA is scheduled for Monday, 24 April 00

in the Family Room.
Thanks for your assistance and participation.
Lynn _
CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED

CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

CLASSIFICATION W/O ATCH: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS W/O ATCH: NONE :
TERMS W/O ATCH: NONE

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE

CLASSIFICATION W/O ATCH: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS W/O ATCH: NONE LT
TERMS W/O ATCH: NONE

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE




CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
CAVEATS: NONE
TERMS: NONE
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MISSION AREA AND BUSINESS PROCESSING ANALYSIS FOR PERSONNEL
RECOVERY AND ACCOUNTING

FOR THE
DEFENSE PRISONER OF WAR/MISSING PERSONNEL OFFICE (DPMO)

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

1.1 Background

The Defense Prisoner of War/Missing Personnel Office (DPMO) was created in 1993 after the
U.S. Government consolidated the Prisoner of War/Missing in Action offices. DPMO is charged
with assembling and analyzing information on U.S. military and civilian personnel who are, or
were, prisoners of war or missing persons. To accomplish their mission, DPMO requires
appropriate automated and integrated information systems and networks.

Personnel recovery is the umbrella term for operations focused on the task of recovering
captured, missing, or isolated personnel from danger. It is the sum of military, civil, and political
efforts to obtain the release or recovery of personnel from uncertain or hostile environments and
denied areas whether they are captured, missing, or isolated. This includes U.S., allied, coalition,
friendly military, or paramilitary and others designated by the National Command Authorities.
Personnel recovery includes, but is not limited to, search and rescue; Combat Search and Rescue;
Survival, Evasion, Resistance and Escape (SERE); Evasion and Recovery; and the coordination
of negotiated as well as forcible recovery options. Personnel recovery may occur through
military action,| action by non-governmental organizations, other U.S. Government-approved
action, and/or diplomatic initiatives, or through any of those options (DOD Directive 2310.3).

DPMO requirei assistance to:

A. Develop a methodology to implement the most effective use of budget, resources, .a.nd
technology to pursue the worldwide live recovery of isolated personnel and post-hostility
accounting while maintaining consistent policy, control, and oversight by FY 2001.

B. Implement a unified system for the live recovery of isolated personnel, post-hostility
accounting and identification system by the end of FY 2002.

Bl

1.2 Mission

DPMO’s mission includes:

A. Exercise policy, control, and oversight within the Department of Defense (DoD) for the
entire process for investigation and recovery related to missing persons (including matters
related to search, rescue, escape and evasion).

B. Coordinate| for DoD with other déﬁartments and agencies of the USG on all matters
concerning| missing persons, and establish procedures for the determination of status of
05/12/00 1 95132DEA-07




missing persons including those to be followed by DoD- boards of inquiry and officials
reviewing the reports of such boards, and;

C. Coordinate for the systematic, comprehensive, and timely collection, analysis, review,
disseminatipn, and periodic update of information related to such persons.

1.3  Goals
DPMO goals include:

A. Develop a methodology to implement the most effective use of budget, resources, ancl . -
technology {to pursue the worldwide live recovery of isolated personnel and post-hostility
accounting while maintaining consistent policy, control, and oversight by FY 2001.

B. Implement @ unified system for the live recovery of isolated personnel, post-hostility
accounting and identification system by the end of FY 2002.

1. Recovery. By 2003, DoD will have a fully integrated personnel recovery architecture
that ensures its ability to recover through military means, designated personnel who are
isolated in harm’s way. The DoD architecture supports and complements the recovery of
personnel through diplomatic and other means. It will develop an interagency
mechastm that maximizes the umque capabilities of each department, agency, or office
in resolving personnel recovery issues and incidents.

2. Accounting. In those instances where DoD is unable to recover its persoimol
immedi%tely, a system that ensures all critical information for making identifications is in
place th;

t ensures rapid correlation to the specific loss incident.

C. Develop and apply scientific, technological and business process breakthroughs on the issues
of:

1. Collection, storage, analysis and dissemination of information on covered personnel by
the end of CY 2000.

2. Identification, location and authentication of missing personnel worldw1de by the end of
CY 2001].

D. Without degrading the current accounting oppoftunities, transition all historical accounting -
processes friom prior conflicts to efforts triggers by new information by FY 2004.

E. On the basi$ of the above analysis, recommend appropriate use of Information Technology
to streamline, consolidate, and organize business functions. To identify the right
opportunities for business reengineering and technology infusion, the first step is to survey
the current environment.
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1.4  Objective

The objective of this statement of work is to assist DPMO in meeting the goals described above.
The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall conduct a Mission Area Analysis (MAA) / Business Process
Reengineering (BPR) (MAA/BPR) effort that defines the components of an effective DoD
personnel recovery, accounting. and remains recovery architecture by examining the full
spectrum of personnel recovery and accounting functions at the DoD, DPMO, and interagency
levels. This analysis will correlate and validate the mission requirements based upon the impacts
associated with|implementing the Missing Persons Act and current capabilities.

To the maximum extent possible, Business Process Engineering tools and methods will be -
employed to provide:

® Process models that depict work processes in the “AS IS” and “TO BE” environments.
e Information Models that describe data required to perform and make decisions.

* Organization Models that define the new or existing organization structure, job pos1t10ns
and job configurations

e Technology Models: that describe the potential of today’s technologies for meeting
mission|requirements.

e Management Strategy. The analysis of the organization and process models will provide
critical input for defining a management strategy to best meet mission objectives.

1.5 Requirelnents

DPMO requires a team of individuals with demonstrated experience (i.e., work performed within
the past 5 years) that have knowledge and expertise in the areas of’

Sucgessfully managing high-level, politically sensitive and classified projects.
Perspnnel recovery.

Policy, doctrine, and plans development in DoD.

Mis

Strategic planning, organizational analysis and development experience.

ion analysis, and operations research.

S O S e

Manpower and budget analysis for improving organizational efficiency including
Offjce of Management and Budget (OMB) standards and requirements for A-76 and
Mot Efficient Organization (MEO) Studies.

7. Abiljty to apply knowledge of A-76 and MEO studies and to make necessary
recommendations on manpower and organizational efficiency.

8. Missing Persons Act.
9. Busi

In addition, the industry partner should provide knowledge in

ess Process Reengineering, Simulation and Modeling. - e

10. Historical Accounting of missihg persons
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11. Research and scientific methods in anthropological analyses

1.6  Scope

i

The scope of this effort includes all analytic and information engineering tools and services
required to accomplish the goals described above.

1.7  Description
The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall accomplish the objectives described above in two phases:

Phase I: MANDATORY: Identify the problem and develop an analytical plan.
(Duration: approximately 3 months).

Phase IT OPTIONAL: Conduct the MAA / BPR - Phase II will cover the “AS IS”
and “TO BE” Environment. (Duration: 8 to 9 months) The key
component of Phase II will be the actual functional analysis and
preparation of the final report.

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall identify opportunities for business process redesign and
information technology _infusion.  Following the principles of business redesign, The
INDUSTRY PARTNER shall consider:

(1) Organizing work around outcomes, rather than tasks;

(2) Providing direct access to customers; --that is, provide timely and accurate responses to
information inquiries;

(3) Harnessing technology—provide right information at the right time.

information and can communicate cross-functionally and cross-organizationally, work
can be performed simultaneously instead of linearly.

(4) Enabling interdependent and simultaneous work. When people have access to

The following paragraphs describe the tasks that will be performed:
1.7.1 Task 1 - Project Management (Mandatory)

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall maintain a project diary and provide support for reviewing
and providing comments on completed studies, analyses, documentation and activities.

1.7.1.1  Subtask 1.1 - Monthly Status Reports (Monthly) (Mandatory)

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall prepare Monthly Status Reports. The monthly status reports
will provide a description of activities (both completed (past month) and planned for the next
month), issues/problems, recommended solutions, and client actions. (Upon award of the
Delivery Order| the Contractor’s status reports will correspond with contractor invoices and
~ provide DPMO with the project fund status as well as the level of effort expended).
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1.7.1.2  Subtask 1.2 — Periodic In Process Reviews (Mandatory)

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall brief the DPMO on findings and activities as required
(estimated weekly basis). The in-process reviews will describe project progress,
accomplishments, issues, and required client actions. The reviews will provide information on:

a) Personnel Recovery Analysis progress
b) Accpunting and Remains Recovery Analysns progress
c) Model development

d) Conference coordination
e) PRAG meeting arrangements
f) Budget and manpower issues

During the in-process reviews, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall document any issues,
comments, recommendations, and/or findings in minutes, and distribute the minutes the next
working day.

1.7.2  Task[2 — Phase I: Project Plan to Conduct the Personnel Recovery Analysis and
) Personnel Accounting (Mandatory)

technical approach, organizational resources, and management controls to be employed to meet
the performance, cost, and schedule requirements throughout execution of the analysis. The
INDUSTRY PARTNER shall describe in detail the research methodology they will employ to
identify gover ing directives, legal authorities, and joint and service policy. To the maximum
extent possible, the research methodology will incorporate business process analysis tools and
principles. The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall identify and take into account current studies
(including, but |not limited to service studies) and analysis for capabilities, tasks, doctrine, and
policies so as to avoid duplication of effort between studies. Phase I shall include development
of an approach| for determining required Joint Mission Essential Tasks for personnel recovery.
The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall ensure that the plan connects required capabilities, tasks,
doctrine, and policies to Defense planning documentation.

As part of this plan, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall prepare a Baseline Schedule, containing
all resources, activities, and milestones necessary to accomplish work specified in the SOW.
The Plan will include the following information:

e All technical activities (including the development of BPR models and other documents)
will be identified and organized in a work breakdown structure (WBS) at a level of detail

1
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1.7.3

1.7.3.1

sufficient for FEDSIM to manage the task, with approximately two additional WBS
levels below the technical activities specified in the SOW.

A GANTT chart which contains activities and milestones pertinent to completion of the
technical activities specified in the SOW.

Description and expected result of each step or milestone in the work plan.

An estimate of the duration and level of effort (by labor category) for each element of the
WBS, Wlth approximately two addmonal WBS levels below the technical activities
spemﬁed in the SOW.

A matrix of all deliverables, and their planned delivery dates.

A matrix of all personnel assigned to the task order and their total aggregate level of
effort for all tasks.

Task|3 — Phase II: (OPTIONAL)

Subtask 3.1 - Conduct Personnel Recovery Process Analysis

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall examine the entire range of personnel recovery, to include
military (conventional, non-conventional, and unconventional), diplomatic, and other means of
recovering isolated personnel. During the examination, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall
document and |describe the relationships of personnel recovery legislation, policy, doctrine,
organizations, technology, and tasks. Recommend who best should resolve each action to
achieve the end-state. The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall identify and take into account current
studies (including, but not limited to service studies) and analysis for capabilities, tasks, doctrine,
and policies so as to avoid duplication of effort between studies.

A.

Method! The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall:

Analyze the full range of DoD personnel recovery requirements. Address requirements
of the interagency community, including, but not limited to the Department of State, CIA,
and U.S| Coast Guard.

Analyze the structure and procedures for interagency coordination and cooperation so as
to maximize the USG’s ability to recover its isolated personnel and account for its
missing, ‘

Analyze the organizations responsible for Personnel Recovery policy, doctrine,
intelligence, technology, and tasks (including the Joint Mission Essential Task List)

Identify |and analyze capabilities and force structure (forces and materiel).

Assess risk and effectiveness of DoD personnel recovery policy and procedures in
military, diplomatic, or other Government agency scenarios.

Use recent studies and analyses performed by other DoD componenté.

Identify technologies (including information technologies) that can improve personnel
recovery and use Advanced Concept Technology Demonstrations as a source for
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informaion. Cooperate with the DoD Personnel Recovery Technology Working Group
to obtain information and recommend additional technological enhancements.

¢ Identify| deficiencies and excesses.

* Identify requirements to change existing doctrine, policy, training, technology, assessing
risk and effectiveness in each key area.

» Identify requirements to modify organizations of the recovery community to include the
potential need to conduct future manpower, budgetary, and other resource studies.

e Recommendations must consider and incorporate current DoD budget and personnel
realities, }

B. Interim Deliverables:
As attachments to the monthly status reports, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall prepare

interim deljverables (i.e, point papers, and graphics) that summarize the results of the
activities above. The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall:

e Identify technological enhancements that will improve personnel recovery.
e Develop the supporting documentation for Mission Needs Statements and
Operational Requirements Documents.

¢ Proyide information to support the development of a personnel recovery-planning
model for operational, process improvements, and strategic planning. Recommended
progess improvements will include a description of impacts and results for both the
“AS IS” and recommended “TO BE” solution.

¢ Identify alternative methods for organizations to resolve each action to achieve the
end-state. '

As required, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall provide executive briefings on each of the items
above.

C: Final Deliverable:

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall provide draft and final versions of a Report and Executive
Briefing that fully describes the results of this analysis, including: (1) the methodology, (2)
analytic tools, |(3) DOD organization/ infrastructure (i.e, description of each of the components,
their mission, and operations), (4) analysis and findings, and (5) recommendations.

1.7.3.2  Sub

ask 3.2 - Conduct Personnel Accounting and Recovery

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall Examine the process of accounting and recovery. The
INDUSTRY PARTNER shall analyze the policy, directives, organizations, resources, and tasks
involved in accounting and recovery.  The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall provide
recommendations to DPMO for the efficient organization of DoD resources currently available
and recommendations for the best means available to meet the requirements of accounting and
recovery in the(future. The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall identify and take into account current
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studies (including, but not limited to service studies) and analysis for capabilities, tasks, doctrine,
and policies so as to avoid duplication of effort between studies.

A. Method| The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall:

* Describe and assess the current DoD recovery effort for which the U.S. Army is the
executive agent.

¢ Conduct a detailed analysis of mission, organizational structure, and associated budgets
of the DPMO, U.S. Army Central Identification Laboratory, HI; the U.S. Army Central
Memorial Affairs Operations Center; the Armed Forces DNA Identification Laboratory;
the USAF Life Sciences Equipment Laboratory, and the Joint Task Force-Full
Accounting.

e Conduct analyses leading to findings and recommendations on the capability of the
, current DoD remains-recovery program and its ability to handle requirements of the 21st
Century.

¢ Identify requirements to modify organizations of the recovery community to ,.include the
potential need to conduct future manpower, budgetary, and other resource studies.

¢ Coordinate workiﬁg groups with key stakeholders in the worldwide recovery program to
develop draft and final reports of findings.

® Consider the impact of interagency and NGOs on accounting policy and operations.

® Make recommendations that consider and incorporate current DoD budget and personnel
realities.

B. Interim Deliverables:

As attachments to the monthly status reports, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall prepare
interim deliverables (i.e, point papers, and graphics) that summarize the results of the
activities above. '

C: Final Deliverable:

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall provide draft and final versions of a Final Recovery
Reports and Executive Briefing, The Report will fully describes the results of this analysis,
including: (1) the methodology, (2) analytic tools, (3) DOD organization/ infrastructure (i.e,
description of each of the components, their mission, and operations), (4) analysis and
findings, and (5) recommendations.

1.7.3.3  Subtask 3.3 - Develop Personnel Recovery Analytical Model

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall develop a credible model or methodology to calculate
recovery-force requirements for the full range of military operations. The model will serve as a
planning tool for operational and strategic-level personnel-recovery planners, and as a precursor
to a Joint Warfighting Capabilities Assessment.

A. Method:| The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall Collect data and use availabie analytical
methods to forecast loss rates across the spectrum of conflict derived from Defense planning
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documentation
Determine forg
planners.

or develop a new method that is mathematically rigorous and credible.
e mixes that are capable of various recovery operations and provide options for

B. Deliver

1) The
model
The mo
each ¢

" utilized

2) Upon
- provide

the next

1.7.3.4 Sub

The INDUSTI
requirements (i

for Americans

Conflict, the Cg¢

A. Method
from efforts to

bles:

USTRY PARTNER shall develop draft and final versions of a non-proprietary
r method that predicts losses and provides options for recovery force selection.

el will be fully documented in draft and final version of a report that describes
mponent of the model, the research, analytic tools, and processes that were
to create the model

cceptance of the final model and report, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall
a model demonstration that forecasts Personnel Recovery resources required over
five years.

task 3.4 - Develop Accounting And Recovery Analytical Model

RY PARTNER shall develop a credible computer model that calculates
e., force structure, budget, time, etc.) to achieve the fullest possible accounting
still unaccounted for as a result of the conflict in Southeast Asia, the Korean
ld War and World War I (WWII).

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall use available methods and historical data
account for Americans still missing as a result of the wars in Southeast Asia, the

Korean Conflict, the Cold War and WWII to develop a mathematically rigorous and credible
model. The mgdel must incorporate variables such as investigative and recovery team mix, site

access, field op

erations frequency, and budget constraints.

B. Deliverables:

1) The INI
model o

DUSTRY PARTNER shall develop draft and final versions of a non-proprietary
method that forecasts requirements to achieve the fullest possible accounting for

Amerlci’ns still unaccounted for as a result of the conflict in Southeast Asia, the Korean

Conflict,

version

the Cold War and WWIL. The model will be fully documented in draft and final
of a report that describes each component of the model, the research, analytic

tools, and processes that were utilized to create the model

2)
provide

required

1.7.3.5 Sub

The INDUSTR]

Upon ac

ceptance of the final model and report, The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall
a model demonstration that forecasts Accounting and Recovery resources
over the next five years.

task 3.5 - Conduct Personnel Recovery Advisory Group (PRAG) Meetings

Y PARTNER shall work closely with DPMO’s is to keep senior leaders of the

personnel reco:]::ry community apprised of issues resulting from the MAA. These meetings will

serve as a foru

December, Mar

A. Method: Tt
Recovery A

05/12/00

to review the results and progress of the MAA. These meetings shall be held in
ch, and June annually; however, variations may occur.

ie Industry Partner shall provide facilitator(s) for meetings of the Personnel
dvisory Group (PRAG). The meetings will consist of contractor and member-
95132DEA-07
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sponsored briefings, and interactive dialogue among USG officials responsible for various
aspects of p‘Lersonnel recovery.

The meetin
Secret.

B.Deliverables:

1) Facilitator(s) to assist in conducting the meeting

s will be 2-3 hours in duration. Classification will be no higher than collateral

2) Reprodyction of required PRAG meeting material

3) Visual aids to support the meeting (e.g., PowerPoint)

4) Audio-visual support personnel to operate the equipment for briefings
5) Labels, VIP seating signs, and name tags

6) Minutes of each meeting delivered to DPMO

1.8  Significant Milestones and Deliverables

PROJECT START (PS) Upon Government recelpt and
approval of approved required
TS/SI/TK clearances for project
personnel + 5 days

Task 1 - Project Management INDUSTRY

PARTNER

Monthly Status Reports INDUSTRY  PS + Monthly for the Duration of this
PARTNER Project Element Plan

In Process Reviews ' INDUSTRY Weekly (or as required) for the
PARTNER/ Duration of this Statement of Work.
DPMO

Task 2 — Phase I: Project Plan to Task will begin upon DPMO receipt of

Conduct the Personnel Recovery approved TS/SI/TK clearances of

Analysis and Personnel contractor personnel

Accounting (Mandatory)

. Draft Plan INDUSTRY PS + 8 weeks
' PARTNER :

Comments DPMO . Draft + 1 month

Final INDUSTRY  PS + 3 months -
PARTNER
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Task 3: Phase IT

3.1 Personnel Recovery Process

Analysis
Interim Deliverables

Draft Report

Comments
Final

3.2 Accounting and Recovery
Analysis
Interim Delivierables

Draft Report
Comments

Final

3.3 Personnel Recovery
Analytical Model
Draft Model and Documentation

Comments
Final

Demonstration

3.4 Accounting And Recovery
Analytical Model
Draft Model 4nd Documentation

Comments
Final

Demonstration

INDUSTRY
PARTNER

INDUSTRY
PARTNER
INDUSTRY
PARTNER
DPMO
INDUSTRY
PARTNER

INDUSTRY
PARTNER
INDUSTRY
PARTNER
DPMO
INDUSTRY
PARTNER

INDUSTRY

PARTNER -

DPMO
INDUSTRY
PARTNER
INDUSTRY
PARTNER

INDUSTRY
PARTNER
DPMO
INDUSTRY
PARTNER
INDUSTRY
PARTNER

11

Acceptance of final Plan plus 9
months

As required
In accordance with Plan

Draft + 2 weeks
Comments + 2 weeks

As required
In accordance with Plan

Draft + 2 weeks
Comments + 2 weeks

In accordance with Plan

Draft + 2 weeks
Comments + 2 weeks

At a time mutually convenient to

DPMO and the INDUSTRY
PARTNER

In accordance with Plan

Draft + 2 weeks
Comments + 2 weeks

At a time mutually convenient to THE
INDUSTRY PARTNER AND DPMO
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3.5 PRAG

eetings

Facilitated Sessions with INDUSTRY As required

reproduced materials, briefings, PARTNER/

audio-visual [aids, identification DPMO

tags _ .

Minutes of meetings INDUSTRY Within 5 work days of meeting
PARTNER

1.9 Period of Performance

The period of p

erformance on this Delivery Order for the MANDATORY TASKS is Date of

Award (DOA) plus 3 months. The period of Performance on the OPTIONAL Tasks is nine

months after ag

1.10 Security

ceptance of the Plan.

be no exceptions. The Government anticipates there will be a close-working relationship with the

The project mifuager assigned to work on this project shall have TS/SI/TK clearance. There will

Industry Partn
entire DPMO
Facility).

r and that there will be occasions when work is to be performed on-site. ’I.‘he
organization is housed within a SCIF (Sensitive Compartmented Information

The INDUSTRY PARTNER SHALL comply with all appropriate security regulations in
handling classified material and in publishing reports and other products. DPMO will not accept

nor pay any bj
POC.

llings for uncleared contractor personnel ‘without prior approval of the DPMO

Required clearances for the analysis of requirements Top Secret/SCI, (estimated for a very

limited number

of contractors (<5)).

For all other personnel, secret security clearances are required for to access DPMO office space,
attend or facilijate the Conferences, or to view plans, procedures, and historical data. Contractor:

candidates mu

t have at least a security clearance IAW DD 254 established for the task.

The contractor must be able to store secret documents and material.

1.11 Key Per

sonnel

1.11.1 The Industry partner shall identify key personnel. The Corporate Officer shall be an
employee of the Prime Contractor whose role is that of overall manager of the contract a_tnd
single point-oftcontact for FEDSIM for resolution of contract-related (as opposed to specific

DO-related) iss
not resolved to

05/12/00

ues. The Corporate Officer shall also be a recourse when DO-related issues are
the Government’s satisfaction at the DO level.
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sonnel assigned to the contract must be assigned for the entire contract period

* Desks or workstations equipped with suitable computers and access to appropriate local area
networks (including e-mail and Internet access) for cleared contractor personnel. DPMO will
determine the number of persons based on tasks and the contractor’s analytical plan.

e The Government will furnish or make available to the contractor any necessary Government
documentation to accomplish the task.

1.13 Place of Performance

Work is to be performed at the contractor’s facility and in the Defense POW/Missing Personnel
Office at 1745 Jefferson Davis highway, Arlington, VA, 22202.

1.14 Travel

Travel may be required to gather information and to meet with subject matter experts, and
organization representatives involved in the process of Personnel Recovery, and Accounting and
Remains Recovery. Specific locations include: Combatant Commands; Joint Services SERE
Agency at Ft. Belvoir, Virginia; Joint Task Force-Full Accounting, Camp H. M. Smith, Hawaii;
Central Identification Laboratory-Hawaii; Combat Search and Rescue Agency at Langley AFB,
Virginia; and th}e Joint Warfighting Center at Ft. Monroe, Virginia. As a travel requirement is
identified, the INDUSTRY PARTNER SHALL coordinate requirements with the Task Monitor.

Travel will be on a cost reimbursable basis in accordance with Federal Joint Travel Regulations
and Section H.4|of the base contract.. All travel shall be authorized in advance by the

~ Contracting Officer’s Represenative (COR). Travel costs shall be itemized in accordance with

Paragraphs 1.15| and 1.16 below.

The Government estimates the following trips:

# Persons # Days

Trip 1 Tampa, FL 2 5
Trip 2 Stuttgart, GE 2. 7
Trip 3 Hampton, VA 2 3
Trip 4 Honolulu, HI 2 7
Trip 5 Miami, FL 2 2
Trip 6 Spokane, WA 2 2
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Trip 7 San Diego, CA
Trip 8 Fayetteville, NC
Trip 9 Montgomery, AL
Trip 10  Little Creek, VA
Trip 11 Seoul, Korea

[\ S IS I S I 8]
NN A

1.15 Invoice Submission

‘Invoices shall be submitted to FEDSIM electronically in TOS. TOS Help Support Phone .
number is 703 605 9716. Prior to submission in TOS to FEDSIM, the contractor shall obtain a
signature from the Client POC on the Form 1034, , '

(1) Send the 1034 with client's signature to:
Ms. Holly T. Carr
5203 Leesburg Pike, Suite 1100
Falls Church, VA 22041

1.16 Invoice Detail

The INDUSTRY PARTNER shall provide for each WBS element in the Task Order
Management Plan, the labor category, the number of hours worked, the labor rate, current price,
cumulative cost to date. When applicable, the contractor shall provide copies of invoices and/or
receipts for Other Direct Costs. When applicable, the contractor shall provide copies of invoices
and receipts for|software tools. Each invoice that includes travel shall provide itemized detail and
supporting information to enable the reviewer to assess compliance.

1.17 FEDSIM Points-of-Contact

Project Manager: Ms. Holly T. Carr
Senior Project Manager: Ms. Sue Latham
Mailing Address: 5203 Leesburg Pike, Suite 1100
Falls Church, VA 22041
Telephone No: (703) 605 9829(Carr)
: (703) 605 9822 (Latham)
Fax No: (703) 605 9870
Email: holly.carr@gsa.gov
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JOINT POW/MIA ACCOUNTING COMMAND

310 WORCHESTER AVENUE
JOINT BASE PEARL HARBOR-HICKAM, HI 96853-5530

DCO (ER)
2012-1026
June 21, 2013

This letter responds to your Freedom of Information Act request, which was
referred to the Joint POW/MIA Accounting Command by the Department of Defense
Office of Freedom of Information, Reference Number 00-F-1568. Your request was for
records pertaining to contracts and related documents with Analytic Services, Inc
(ANSER). Thank you for your patience while we processed your request.

Please find enclosed copies of documents labeled 7, 8a, and 29 and redacted
copies of documents labeled 6, 6a, 8b, 17, and 22cl. These documents, totaling 132
pages, are appropriate for their full release and those with partial release with excisions.
These excisions are made pursuant to Exemptions of the FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (b) (6),
which pertains to the release of information which would constitute a clearly
unwarranted invasion of the personal privacy of a third party. And excisions pursuant to
Exemption (b) (3) Statute, 50 U.S.C. § 435 Note Sec 1082, P.L. 102-190, which protects
the disclosure of information concerning U.S. personnel classified as POW/MIA during
the Vietnam and Korean Conflicts, otherwise known as the “McCain Bill”. All processing
fees have been waived.

If there is anything else that | or any member of my staff can do for you, please
do not hesitate to contact Ms. Rachel Phillips, my FOIA Officer at the above address or

at Rachel.Phillips@jpac.pacom.mil.
Sincerely,
4_5 £ =

JOHNIE E. WEBB, JR.
Deputy to the Commander for
External Relations and Legislative Affairs
Encl: Responsive Documents

Copy to: DFOIPO

“Until They Are Home”






TAPC-PED-H 16 June 1998

MEMORANDUM THRU Director, Casualty and Memorial Affairs Operations Center,
| 2461 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22331-0480

FOR Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense (POW/Missing Personnel Affairs),
Joint Support Directorate, 2400 Defense, Pentagon, Washington, DC 20301-2400

E

SUBJECT: Korean War Remains Recovery Plan

1. The DPMO plan is a good basis for discussion on the expansion of operations in the DPRK.
However, CILHI proposes the following Facts, Assumptions, and Recommendations for
consideration prior to any decision or further discussion of the issue.

2. After review of the proposed plan CILHI would like to provide the following comments for
consideratign. : &

FACTS. |
|
x
e The weather window in DPRK will support five deployments of 30 days each into
the DPRK. Based on experience, the recovery time frame in the DPRK runs from April
through late October. This allows for a seven-month window, which can realistically
support five 30-day recovery windows per year given transit time into and out of country.

|
¢ Updated information is not available on potential recovery sites. Information which
CILHI bases its search areas on is derived from historical documents dating from the
. 1950s. This information does not pinpoint areas of possible remains, does not address the
current status of the site and does not necessarily meet the criteria for launching a
recovery team,

» CILHI completed five recovery operations resulting in nine remains. To date CILHI
has dompleted five recovery operations in the DPRK. Nine remains were recovered from
efforts. Historically, an operation consists of CILHI and DPMO proposing areas to
be searched for remains with negative results. As a recovery operation comes to a close
the BPRK search the surrounding countryside for a credible witness from the 1950s era.
After locating a witness the DPRK conducts a pin point search and if positive, leads the
recovery team to an area, which historically has yiclded the remains of one or two people.

+ CILHI manpower is currently resourced to support two recovery teams. CILHI
currently possesses two staffed recovery teams dedicated to DPRK recoveries.
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!

M(f)vement within DPRK is tightly controlled. Movement within the DPRK is
completely supervised and directed. Recovery teams are not free to explore the country
side nor canvass the arcas of operations for witnesses.

DPRK recoveries do not comply with CILBI SOP. For CILHI to deploy a recovery
team anywhere else in the world certain criteria must first be meet. This criteria includes
the site is that of a US loss, is accessible, is pinpointed, and has a probability of

recovering remains is high.

DPRK will not allow female team members to work out of a base camp. As it stands
the Jeadership of the DPRK recovery effort strongly advises against allowing US females
to work out of a base camp. This concem is based on the lack of privacy and the close
proximity of DPRK soldiers. DPRK feels it better not to chance inadvertent contact and
the possibility of an incident. '

It is|currently more cost effective to deploy survey teams vs recovery teams. Due to
the lack of current information on proposed recovery sites and the fact that recovery
tean}s are now spending in excess of fifty percent of their time in country searching for
viable sites, it would ease site location and comply with CILHI SOP to survey and verify
prospective sites prior to deploying recovery teams.

ASSUMPTIONS.

DPRK will allow increased access in the future. Contrary to current actions, the
DPRK will openly cooperate and allow additional teams into their country.

Team structure will remain the same. Future recovery teams or survey teams will
remain staffed by at least one Field Grade Officer and will not include female tcam

-members unless operations can be conducted from a hotel.

OPTEMPO will continue to be linked with external factors. Political forces
surrounding the DPRK opening of relations will continue to push for increased
particjpation in this humanitanian issue.

Weather patterns will remain constant. Weather patterns will be as they were during

1997 and early 1998.

Maunpower requirements will be filled. CILHI will continue to operate with its current
strength. )

Current system will continue to produce limited results. If we continue to deploy
recovery teams to non specific sites we will continue to spend the majority of time
surveyling sites to pin point burial locations. :
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i
i

e  With three teams in country operating on verified isolated burial sites, at 2 proposed
OPTEMPO of five JROs per year, it wouald take at least 20 years to recover the
reinains of 4,000 individuals. This inforration is based on a single team being able to
recover one isolated burial (which has a known location) i a period of two working days.

Dl‘iRK is limited in their ability to support additional teams. The Panmunjom
migsion is limited by their available manpower to adequately supervise increased levels
of US personnel moving in and around their country. This statement is based on

* tonversations with DPRK Officials speaking of their inability to handle over 90 US
personnel in their country at one time. This capability is tied to the lack of English
spc%lkcm and officials dedicated to international affairs.

SEA OPTEMPO will remain in a constant state through the year 2001. Operations
.in support of JTF-FA will not increase nor decrease from the FY 98/99 projections
thraugh the year 2,001. CILHI will continue to provide 47 recovery teams to JTF during
this|time period.

CIIJHI will continue to provide five recovery teams in support of the WWII/Cold

War resolution effort. Currént projections call for five recovery operations per year in
support of WWII/Cold War losses. This schedule will remain constant though 2,001.

Any additions in military manpower can be gained either through the 54*
Qu)a’L'termaster Company (QM) or active reservist. The 54® QM is located on Ft. Lee
and maintains a pool of Mortuary Affairs specialist which can be either assigned to
CILHI by redistributing personnel authorizations, assigned on a TDY and return or
attached for training purposes. Activating reserve officers for active duty mission
requirements may fill the increase in Field Grade Officer requirements. Since this is a
non—i:risis operation the position may require a reservist volunteer for the duty.

|
E

RECOMMENDATIONS.
|

That until recpvery sites are properly surveyed and their locations verified by US team members a
US presence be maintained in the DPRK by the FY 98-recovery plan remaining in effect. That,
until there is a significant increase in verified sites conceming US losses with a high probability
of recovery, OPTEMPO does not increase. That if operations are to increase that they do so over
a three year ramp up culminating in three teams in country for five JROs per year.

i

That operational control of recovery teams remains a CILHI responsibility and no umbrella
organization such as JTF is created to increase the bureaucratic demands on the recovery effort.
Policy level ozganizations remain involved with policy decisions and the operations involved in

the humanitartan recovery of remains not be directly tied to political motives.
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Proposal would be implemented as follows:

¢ Note: Cost estimates are based solely on the recovery teams requirements and do not include
compensation paid the DPRK for their participation in the effort, security charges, increased
witness fees nor off season storage fecs. These costs are estimated at 705K for FY 98 and
can be assumed to increase at a yet undetermined rate for higher OPTEMPO.

FY 99

Conduct Fiye JROs consisting of one Recovery Team (RE) of eight personnel and one
Investigation Team (IE) of four personmel. This breaks down into a tearn mix of the following.

Recovery Element:

|
1-Field Grade 04 Mision Commander
1-DA Civilian GS-13 Anthropologist
1-Company Grade 0-3 Team Leader
1-Senior NCO E6/E7 Team Sergeant
1-Junior NCO ES/E6 MA Specialist
1-Senior NCO E6/E7 Team Medic
1-Junior NCO ES/E6 EOD Tech
1-Junior NCO ES-E7 Linguist

Investigative Element

[-Fireld Grade 04 Team Leader
1-DA Civili GS-13 Anthopologist
1-DA Civilian GS-9 Analyst

1- Senior NCO E6/E7 Team Medic

a. This results in the following impacts:

Incréases:
Civilian changes
* Requires two additional anthropologists be added to the CILHI staff 145K

« Two each Casualty data analysts for an increases of 105K per year



TAPC-PED-H
SUBJECT: Korean War Remains Recoyery Plan

i
Military personnel'increases

|
i

*  Requires the addition of two medics to the TDA or augmentation for five JROs
* Requires the addition of two field grade officers to the TDA unless locally available

- | Eight additional Mortuary Affairs Specialists added to the TDA

. ETwo Linguists added to the TDA
e Requires a budget increase of 130 K of operational funding

Travel & Per diem

« Increases for 4 personnel est. at 134K
No Change to:
*  Commo Cell in Pyongyang
. L;ogistical NCO in Beijing
Loss%s: None |
Civilian ‘ ay increase of 250K

Total operational cost estimate (open allotment) of 1,382K . This estimate includes the
projected costlof FY 99 (1,118K) operations and the additional cost 130K for
transportation/administrative costs for the Investigative Element in the DPRK and their increased
travel of 134K. *This figure will look low due to the purchase of all equipment used in the
DPRK during FY 98.

* Note Compensation for DPRK (fucl, rice, witness interviews, official pay ect.) is not reflected in this
plan. Compensation package agreed to during FY 98 equals to 672K for the initial agreed upon price. This
does not include base camp security, bus rental, nor additional vehicular rental which can be expected to
total 10K per optration. In addition to this CILHI pays 26.4K per year for off season storage. Realistically
FY 98s compensation package to the DPRK can be expected to be 750K. Based on these figures total
cost estimate for FY 99 is 2,382K (open allotment 2,132K) increase in civilian pay of 250K
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FY 00 Based on the successful identification of positive recavery sites during FY 99, operations
could be increased to include conducting five JROs consisting of two REs totaling 16 persomnel
and one IE of four personnel. This breaks down into a team mix of the following.

Recovery Element #1:

1-Field Grade
1-DA Civiljan
1-Company Grade
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO
1-Junior NCO

Recovery Ejﬁement #2:

I-Field Gracic
1-DA Civili
1-Company (Grade
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO
1-Junior NCQ

Investigative Element

1-Field Gradéd
I-DA Civilian
1-DA Civilian
1- Senior NCO

|

0-4

GS-13
0-3

E6/E7
ES/E6
E6/E7
ES/E6

ES-E7

04
GS-13

E6/E7
ES/E6
EG/E7
ES/E6
ES-E7

04
GS-13
GS-9
E6/E7

Mision Commander
Anthropologist
Team Leader

Team Sergeant
MA Specialist
Team Medic

EOD Tech

Linguist

Mision Commander
Anthropologist
Team Leader

Team Sergeant

MA Specialist
Team Medic

EOD Tech

Linguist

Team Leader
Anthropologist
Analyst

Team Medic

a. 'RLis results in the following impacts:

Increases:
Civiligrn changes
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* | Requires three additional anthropologists be added to the CILHI staff 210K

* Two each Casualty data analysts for an increascs of 105K per year

Military personnel increases

* Requires the addition of two EOD specialists to the TDA
« {Requires the addition of two Linguists to the TDA

Eq 1ipmem

- %ipcrcascs 999K

Travel & Per diem

« Increases for 8 personnel est. at 268K

No Change to:

« Logistics NCO in Beyjing

« Commo cell in Pyongyang

Losses:

e None

Total cost estimate includes an increase over the previous year of 1,582K and can be
expected to total at least 3,399K of open allotment expenditure. This estimate includes the
purchasc of 1 ndditional complete set of base camp equipment, the purchase of 8 ea. Nissan
Patrols for the teams mobnlity around the DPRK the additional shipping charges to and from
DPRK and travel costs of the teams. Based on these figures total cost estimate for FY 00 is
3,964K (open allotment 3,399K ) increase in civilian pay of 565K

* Note this cost estimate uses the FY 98 compensation package for the DPRK and does not reflect
additional requirements of the DPRK for witness paymuent, additional fuel, or any other administrative
chaiyes that ma* be negotiated by the DPRK resulting from increased operational tempo.

i

FY 01 and bcy‘bnd: Conduct five JROs consisting of three REs and one IE. This breaks
down into a team mix of the following
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Recovery l\':lement #1:

1-Field Grade
1-DA Civilian
1-Company Grade
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NGO
1-Junior NCO

04

GS-13
03

E6/E7
ES/E6
E6/E7
ES/E6
E5-E7

Recovery Ellement #2: -

1-Field Grade
1-DA Civilian
1-Company (rade
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCQ
1-Senior NCQ
1-Junior NCQ
1-Junior NCQO

Recovery Element #3

1-Field Grade
1-DA Civilian
1-Company Grade
1-Senior NCO
1-Junior NCO!
1-Senior NCO|
1-Junior NCO
1-Junior NCO

Investigative Element

1-Fireld Grade|
1-DA Civilian |
1-DA Civilian |
1- Senior NCO|

04

GS-13
0-3

E6/E7
ES/E6
E6/E7
ES/E6
ES-E7

O-4

GS-13
0-3

E6/E7
ES/E6
E6/E7
ES/E6
ES-E7

04
GS-13
GS-9
E6/E7

Mission Commander
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
Civi}ilian changes
* |Two additional Anthropologists 145K
Milijtary personnel increases
‘e bne additional Logistics NCO or Officer in Beijing 46K
Equipment
= increases 999K
Tra‘vel & Per diem
. lrcrcascs for 8 personnel est. at 268K

No Change to:

. éommo Cell in Pyongyang

Losses:
¢ None

Total cost estimate includes an increase over the previous year of 1,458K and can be
expected to tdtal at teast 4,722K of open allotment expenditure. This estimate includes the
purchase of l?sdditional complete set of base camp equipment, the purchase of 8 ea. Nissan
Patrols for the|teams mability around the DPRK the additional shipping charges to and from
DPRK and tmv«:l costs of the teams. Based on these figures total cost estimate for FY 00 is
5,422K (open allotment 4,722K ) increase in civilian pay of 700K

3. Once relations reach an acceptable state of normalization a forward-deployed detachment
should be estahlished in Pyongyang. The detachment’s mission would be to provide
communication and logistical support to deployed recovery teams and constant archival
research/analysis and lead development for future recovery possibilities. The detachment should
be permancmlyi assigned to CILHI and staffed as follows:

Cdr 10-4 lea

NCOIC B8 lea



TAPC-PED-H
SUBJECT: Korean War Remains Recovery Plan

Commo E6 3ea
Specialist

Analyst/ |  E-6 2ea
Linguist

Though i brmation does not currently exist to prepare a costs estimate it may be similar to
Detachhient Three in Vientiane and be expected to run in the 700K per year range.

4. Implementation of this plan relics on the capability to utilize both the reserves and the 54
Quartermaster Company for additional personnel as necded.

5. POC for tthe above information is ®) © Executive Officer, at telephone
number (808) 448-8903.

(b) (6)

Colonel, Quartermaster
Commanding
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TAPC-PED-H 24 August1998

MEMORANDUM THRU Direotor, Casualty and Memorial Affairs Operations Center,
2461 Eisenhowcr Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22331-0480

FOR Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defensc (POW/Missing Personnel Affairs), ATTN:
(ko) Joint Support Directorate} 2400 Defense, Pentagon,
Washington, DC 20301-2400

SUBJECT: Opcrational template for future recovery operationis

1. The fdllowing information is provided to be uscd a5 a basio guideline for remains recovery
operationk outsidc of the Unitcd States. It gives a basic outline of tcam requircments and some
cost factars, which arc based on historical expenditures.

2. Thesc ,‘rccovcry packages arc designed to service other than Southeast Asian recovery areas
and do nat include air crash analysts as part of their organio structurc. They arc suitable for
ground Jass and slow moving air crash recovery. In the event that a fast moving aircraft loss is to
be scrviced air ¢rash analysts should be added to the (cam.

3. Cun-é;ntly CILHI operates in three distinct theatres, each with a specific set of requiremcats.

(3) SEA—Multiple teams supparted by both a forward deployed detachment in the
country of opcrations and a support detachment, one country away from the area of operations,
with a higher level of infrastructure to support deploying teams,

(%) DPRK—Singic team supported by a communication liaison in the country of
operations and a logistics NCO stationed at a USEMB, ane country away from the arca of
operations, with a higher level of infrastructure to support deploying teams.

(8) WWII/Cold War—Single team, when deploycd becomcs totally sclf reliant for in
theatre s . These opcrations arc pre-forecasted and extensively planned on a case by casc
basis. The estnbhshment of forward-deployed logistioal personne] becormnes a very real
reqmrcmént when you plan to conduct either multi-tearn (mom than one) or multiple successive

operations in a single country, or region.

(1) The following details in general terms USACIILHT's 5 year focus for world
wide recovery operations. USACTLHI will assign priority for recovery for any world wide site
using the following criteria:

(#) Sites that arc open.
(b) Sitcs with associated remains,
(c) Sites positively correlated to a US loss incident.

(d) Sites with special Congressional or Next of Kin intcrest.

G A
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, (2) USACILHI will focus recovery ¢fioris in the next five years in the following -
regions/pountrics:

j (2) Papua New Guinea. 15 sites arc ready for excavation in Papua New
Guinea. | 73 additional rccorded sites require some form of investigation befote USACILHI
recovers them. USACILHI reccives on average one teported new sitc from the imbassy in Port
Moresby each month. If the threat level in Papua New Guinea does not incrcase, USACILHT will
focus most of its effarts for world wide recoveries here for the next five years and beyond.

(b) Burope. In 1997, USACILHI and the United States Army Memorial
Affairs Activily, Buropc (USAMAAE) drafted an MOU for recovery operations in Europe which
has proved very effective. Sinoe the MOU took effect, USACILHI and USAMAAE have
recovered 10 sites in Burope. Various sources have reported many sites warranting recovery and -
identification in eastern Europe. - Using USAMAAT to investigate thesc silcs, as well as
providing logistic coordination, has facilitated recovery opcrations. The mission planning and
coordmation window for Europe as a result has been cut from six months to under three,
USAMAAE slso increases our floxibility in dcaling with unilateral remains disinterment and
turnover,

(3) Other world wide sites. Overall, USACILHT has identificd the following site
for recovery and investigation by region:

(a) Pacific AOR¥: 23 Recoveries. 105 Investigations
(b) Ewxope: 12 Recoveries. 25 Investigations
* includes Papua New Guinea

4, ‘The foilowing is 5 generic template, which could be matohed to anyone of CLLHI's three
theatres of aperation.

a. Singlc toam recovery.

(l,) Tcam composition:

Recovery Element #1:

1-DA Civilian GS-13 Aathropologist
1-Comparny Grade 0-3 Tcam Leader
1-Senior NCO ' BG/E7 Tcam Sergeant
3-4 Junior NCO ES/EG MA Specialist
1-Senior ﬂlCO EWET Team Medic
1-Junior NCO ES/EG ROD Tech
1-Junior NCO ES-E7 Linguist
1-Junior N¢ 135-B6 Photographer

Total 9-11 Personucl
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t2) General costs associated with deployment during a nonmal deployment window of 30
days incjuding transportation to and around the area, per-diem and Class A funds. Thess costs do
not incmdc any additional equipment costs, which can normally be ¢stimated at

FOuntry Average cost
Pgpua N!bw Guinca | $170K
Russia $140K
*(Fermany $88K
Chima | - $175K
Vanuatu | $155K

*#Operations conducted in Germany, and some other locations in Europe, arc done in
conjunctipn with the United Sates Army Mortuary Affgirs, Europe (USAMAE) acting as a
supporting agency. Costs such as Labor, transportation around the area and additional equipment
charges are not represented in CILHI costs.

b. Multiple team recovery such as SEA or successive recoveries in %my one country during
asingle FY:

(1) Multiple team or successive multiple recoveries performed in any onc rcgion during
any single{year will require supporting personnel be deployed into that area. These personncl arc
required to facilitato logistical requirements, provide site identification and command and control.
Recommend that the forward deployed support persommel take the form of a Detachment
Headquarters and onc Investigative Element (TE). Recommend that thelnvestigative Elcment
remain attached (o the forward-deplayed Detachment Headquarters for continuas exposure and
rapport bujlding with the Host Nation (HN).

@) Regionalr Recovery Package:

Recovery Elcment #1-TBD:

1-DA Civilian GS-13 Anthropologist
1-Company Grade 0-3 Team Leader
1-Scnior EWE7 - Team Scrgeant
3-4 Junior NCO ES/EG MA Specialist

1-Seniot { 0} L6/B7 Team Medic
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1-Junior NCO ES/EG EOD Tech
1-Junior NOO BS-E7 Linguist
1-Junior NCO ES-B6 Photograpber

Total 9-11 Personnel ar higher '

Invutig*tive Element 1

1-Company Grade ' O-3 Team Leader
1-DA Civilian GS-13 Anthropologist
1-DA Ciyilian GS-9 I.inguist/Analyst
1- Senioy NCO E6/E7 Team Medio

Total 4 Personnel

Deta ent Headquarters.

!
Cdr | 04/05 lea
NCOIC B-7/8 lea
Commo Specialist E6 3ea
Analyst/ Linguist EG  2ea

i

Contracting Specialist GS 9/10 lea
Air Movepzent NCO E-7 Iea
Total 9 personncl

Minimum|personnel total for continuous operations in a single country would be;

Recovery Elements X 2 = 18 personnel
Inveti gah'vée Element X 1= 4 personnel

Detnchma%xt X 1= 9 pcrsommel

Z Total=31 personnel
Monetary ¢osts assooiatcd with establishment of a detachment arc not currently documm}pd by
CILII Ag recovery (cams increase over CILHIs currently authorized number of 13, additional
suppod personnel must also be included. The expanded operations in the DPRK document may
be used to indicate that,

5. Multiple options exist as cwrent plans rescarch the feasibility of JTF-FA and CILHI merging
into one organization. This new recovery organization becoming the sole proponent for the
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worldwide remains recovery cffort. The Racl. outlines a praposcd organizational diagram for
such an organization.

Encl.

P.

06
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OUTLINE

* Deployment Highlights
* Current/Recent Operations
~» Future Operations

 FY Master Schedule



HIGHLIGHTS

* Currently 6 of 13 teams deployed
* Recently Completed: 98-1GE (Germany)
* Ongoing missions:

— 98-3PP (Papua New Guinea)

— 98-2CH (China) |

— 98-5KN (DPRK)

—=98-1L (Laos)



GERMANY

» Team returned 30 September 1998

e Results

— 3 sites closed - remains recovered at two sites
— Received one set of remains in Luxembourg

~ » Recovery team augmented by USAMAAE,
54th QM Co (MA) |



PAPUA NEW GUINEA

* Team deployed 21 September 1998

» Results to date:
— 1 site closed - remains recovered (DeSilets P-47)

— 1 site on-going (Gaftney P-47)
* a/c correlated through machine gun serial numbers
* Remains recovered

o Team Returns 31 October 1998



" CHINA

» Team deployed 09 September 1998
(B-24 10BNR)

* Second recovery mission to site

. Results to date;

— Remains recovered primarily from second of
five levels

 weather has impeded excavation - will not
close site

 Team returns 24 October 1998



NORTH KOREA

12 Sets remains CY 98

Team Deployed 12 October 1998
Results to date: |
— N/A - team moves to Pyongyang on 17 October

team returns 8 November 1998



"LAOS

* 3 teams deployed 27 September 1998

 Results to date:

— 3 sites in Svannakhet Province ongoing
— 1 site has yielded remains

e 3 teams return 1 November 1998



" FUTURE OPERATIONS
* 53rd JFA - Vietnam (30 Oct - 10 Dec 98)

— 6 Teams
— Northern Vietnam
* Log Survey - Irian Jaya (Nov 98)
— Prep for January recovery (B-25 8 BNR)

— Verify logistics viability and support assets |
* 99-2L - Laos (8 Jan - 15 Feb 99)

— 4 teams
— Boulikhamxi and Savannakhet Provinces



FUTURE OPERATIONS

* 99-11J - Indonesia (5 -23 Jan 99)
— 1 team |
— PACAF Support

* 54th JFA - Vietnam (19nFeb - 30 Mar 99)

— 6 teams
— North and Central Vietham



FY 99 SCHEDULE

Vietnam Laos |
53rd 30 Oct - 9 Dec 98 99-1L 27 Sep - 4 Nov 98
54th 19 Feb - 31 Mar 99 99-2L 8 Jan - 15 Feb 98
55th 30 Apr - 9 Jun 99 99-3L 5 Mar - 11 Apr 99
56th 9 Jul - 18 Aug 99 99-4L 4 Jun - 14 Jul 99
57th 17 Sep - 27 Oct 99 99-5L 13 Aug -22 Sep 99

- Cambodia
- 99-1C 8 Jan - 15 Feb 99




FY 99

Worldwide Schedule
Indonesia 5 -23 Jan 99
Papua New guinea 22 Jan - 12 Mar 99
China 22 Apr - 7 Jun 99
Makin Island 8 May - 14 Jun 99
Europe/PPNG 1-31 Aug 99

 Mission to DPRK - dates TBD during
December 99 talks in New york







Zero Based Work Plan

FY99 FYO0 FYO1 FY02 FYO3 FY04 FYO05

SRV
JFAs 5 5 4 3 0 0 0
|IES/REs 10/30 10/30 8/24  6/18 0/0 0/0 0/0
LAOS
JFAs 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
IES/REs 317 317 37 317 317 317 317

SRV INDeroor . ere)

PROJECTED  129/94 65/41 11/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
LAO 'ND(END OF FY.IE/RE)

PROJECTED  48/189 40/158 31/134 22/108 13/84 4/57  0/33

JTF-FA PRODUCT



SuUBJ: JTF-FA ZERO BASED WORK PLAN

SUMMARY: JTF-FA conducts joint field activities (JFAs) in Vietnam, Laos, and Cambodia to
achieve the fullest possible accounting for the 2,063 Americans still unaccounted for. Curmrent
rojections using the zero-based plan indicate investigative and excavation requirements for
FlYeér_}am complete in FY02 and in Laos investigative and excavation requirements complete in

KEY POINTS |

o Zero Based Work plan geared toward mission cor,t__1$letion of current/projected requirements.

¢ Work plan jncludes five JFAs in Vietnam through FY0O reducing to three in FY02, five per
year in Lags through the FYDP and one JFA in Cambodia for FY99/00.

o JTF-FA budget has been approved (POM) through FY05.

e JTF-FA billets have dropped from 181 (FY92) to current level of 161. Billets will continue to
decrease to match the work requirement beginning in FY02 until FY04, then stabilize at 85
until mission completion.

DISCUSSION

Vietnam:
. E{(vgg JFAs scheduled for FY99 and FY00, four JFAs for FY01, and three JFAs for
e Team usually composed of two investigation elements and six recovery elements of
over 100 personnel. Personnel also required to investigate priority discrepancy cases.
+ Viethamese linguists’ key to maintaining projected OPTEMPO.

taos:

. Fiv4 JFAs scheduled each year from FY99 through FY05.

« Team usually composed of one investigative and three recovery elements totaling 40
personnel. Personnel also required for archival research and oral history interviews.

¢ 40 pgersonnel cap per JFA has limited progress of excavations resulting in extension of
mission completion beyond the FYDP.

|
Cambodia. |
¢ One JFA scheduled per year for FY99 and FY0O.
o U.S| team usually tailored to mission requirements.
e Ca lbodian operations will be conducted as required FYO1 and beyond.

Budget:
e JTF-FA bUd%ﬁt is approved through POM for FY99 — FY05. )
o Includes O&M, N plus Army funds, and drops from $20.7M in FY99 to $14.6M in FY05.

Manpower: .
e JTF:FA billet extensions approved by USA, USAF, and USMC. USN approval is
pending.
« Billet extensions reflect current projections of work requirements.
o ::‘E SIEFA\A(F(;g increasing due to decreased manning with no change in OPTEMPO
ro .

o JTF+FA will continue to require augmentation from service components for each JFA.
« Augmentees include medics, EOD, comm, mechanics, linguists, and life support techs.
Future: DPMO is developing options for follow-on capability after JTF-FA.

BOTTOM LINE: JTF-FA will continue to conduct JFAs in Southeast Asia at the current level for
the next two yléars, then reduce deployments until projected completion.

®) 477-3131/JTF-FA J3/05 Apr 99; c:\data\text\zerobase.doc
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O P 151700Z JUN 98 ZDK

FM CDR JTF-FA HONOLULU HI//J3//

TO AIG 960

INFO USCINCTRANS SCOTT AFB IL/TCJ3-ODJ//

HQ AMC SCOTT AFB IL//SAAM//

HQ AMC TACC COMMAND CENTER SCOTT AFB IL//XOOZ/TRKX//
NAVCSRF HONOLULU HI//PW-MIA//

CINCPACFLT PEARL HARBOR HI//N3/N6/N45/NOIM/N1/N13//
COMMARFORPAC/IG1/G3/G6//

CG | MEF/G1/GS!

CG il MEF/IG1/G6//

USARPAC INTEL FT SHAFTER HI

HQ PACAF HICKAM AFB HI/DO/SGX/SGO/SGN

PACAF AOS HICKAM AFB HI//AOM/AOP//

15ABW HICKAM AFB HI//ICCILG/I

15LGS HICKAM AFB HI//CC/ILGSM//

FISC PEARL HARBOR HI//QO//

3740G YOKOTA AB JA/ICCI

3740SS YOKOTA AB JA//OSO/OSOO!//

374AW YOKOTA AB JA//OCO//

374AES YOKOTA AB JA/ISG/AO/AOE//

BUMED WASHINGTON DC//27//

AMEMBASSY HANOI//CJTFFA DET TWO!//

INFO USCINCPAC LO WASHINGTON DC

13AF ANDERSEN AFB GU//ICCILG//

CDRUSARPAC FT SHAFTER HI//APOP-OP/APLG-MV/APLG-MU-EODCT//
CDR703MIBDE OPS KUNIA HI

RSOC KUNIA HI//J342/JOC/J3M3/J3W//

CDR205THMIBN FT SHAFTER HI/IAGPD//

150SS HICKAM AFB HI//DOX/!

635 AMSS HICKAM AFB HI//DO/DOCO/DOX//

JFMO PAC HONOLULU HI

354MDG EIELSON AK//ISGOAR//

COMNAVSURFRESFOR OPS FLTSUPP NEW ORLEANS LA/N3//
COMNAVSPECWARCOM CORONADO CA//N10//

BT

UNCLAS //N03460//

PART ONE OF THREE-PART TWO IDENT IS 151701Z JUN 98-PART THREE IDENT
IS 1561702Z JUN 98

MSGID/GENADMIN/JTF-FA/1-99/MAY//

SUBJ/JOINT TASK FORCE-FULL ACCOUNTING OPLAN 1-99//
REF/AIRMG/CJCS/082354ZJANS2//

REF/B/IRMG/CJCS/222300ZJANS2//

REF/C/RMG/CJCS/020046ZNOVI1//

REF/D/DOC/USCINCPAC//

REF/E/RMG/SECDEF/061158ZAUG93//
REF/FIRMG/USCINCPAC/5080-93//

NARR/REF A IS CJCS ALERT ORDER. REF B IS CJCS EXECUTE ORDER. REF C
IS CJCS PLANNING ORDER. REF D IS USCINCPAC/DIA MOU DEFINING
RELATIONSHIP FOR POW-MIA OPS. REF E IS REORGANIZATION OF NATIONAL
POW-MIA OPERATIONS. REF F IS USCINCPAC OPORD FOR EXPANDED POW-MIA
OPERATIONS IN SE ASIA, OPERATION FULL ACCOUNTING.//

POC/®) ® DJ3(PLANS)/JTF-FA/CAMP SMITH, HI/TEL:DSN 477-3001/
TEL:FAX DSN 477-5501//
POC/®) ®) /DJI3(AIRYJITF-FAICAMP SMITH, H/TEL:DSN 477-3001//

RMKS/1. SITUATION. SINCE ITS INCEPTION IN 1992, JOINT TASK FORCE-

FULL ACCOUNTING (JTF-FA) HAS CONDUCTED IN EXCESS OF 26,350
INVESTIGATIONS AND 422 EXCAVATIONS WHICH HAVE LED TO THE RECOVERY OF
495 SETS OF REMAINS OF US SERVICEMEN MISSING AS A RESULT OF THE
CONFLICT IN SE ASIA. TO DATE, THE REMAINS OF 177 SERVICEMEN HAVE
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BEEN IDENTIFIED AND RETURNED TO THEIR FAMILIES. AS RELATIONS BETWEEN
THE UNITED STATES AND THE GOVERNMENTS OF THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF
VIETNAM (SRV), THE LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC (LPDR), AND THE
KINGDOM OF CAMBODIA (KOC) CONTINUE TO IMPROVE, JTF-FA CONTINUES ITS
RESOLVE TO ACHIEVE THE FULLEST POSSIBLE ACCOUNTING OF THOSE MISSING
AMERICANS. ,

A. THREAT. SEE ANNEXES B AND L.

B. TOPOGRAPHY AND WEATHER. SEE ANNEX B.

C. FRIENDLY FORCES. THE GOVERNMENTS OF SRV, LPDR, AND KOC WILL
PROVIDE PERSONNEL AND LIMITED LOGISTICS TO ASSIST IN RECOVERY AND
INVESTIGATIVE EFFORTS IN THE ACCOUNTING OF AMERICANS MISSING AS A
RESULT OF THE CONFLICT IN SE ASIA.

D. ASSUMPTIONS

(1) PERTINENT SE ASIAN GOVERNMENTS WILL PERMIT JTF-FA
CONTINUED ACCESS TO THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNTRIES TO RESOLVE POW/MIA
ISSUES.

(2) JOINT STAFF WILL AUTHORIZE REQUESTED MANNING LEVELS TO
SUPPORT PROJECTED OPERATIONS THROUGH FY99.

(3) HOST NATION, CONTRACTED OR US MILITARY HELICOPTER SUPPORT
WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR JTF-FA OPERATIONS IN REMOTE AREAS OF SE ASIA.

(4) PROJECTED BUDGET LEVELS WIiLL ACCOMMODATE THE PLANNED
OPERATIONAL SCHEDULE.

2. MISSION. DURING FY99, JTF-FA CONDUCTS INVESTIGATION AND RECOVERY
OPERATIONS IN SRV, LPDR AND KOC IN ORDER TO ACHIEVE THE FULLEST
POSSIBLE ACCOUNTING OF AMERICANS MISSING AS A RESULT OF THE WAR IN SE
ASIA.

3. EXECUTION

A. CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS. JTF-FA WILL DEPLOY TASK ORGANIZED,
INVESTIGATION RECOVERY TEAMS (IRT) TO CONDUCT A MINIMUM OF TEN JOINT
FIELD ACTIVITIES (JFAS). THESE ACTIVITIES ARE DEPLOYMENTS, LASTING
APPROXIMATELY 30 DAYS IN-COUNTRY, AND ARE PLANNED FOR SRV AND LPDR.
EACH OPERATION CONSISTS OF SEVEN PHASES:

(1) PHASE I: PREPARATION PHASE. COMMENCES WITH THE FIRST
INVESTIGATION AND RECOVERY BRIEFING AND TERMINATES WITH EMBARKATION
ABOARD AIRCRAFT FOR DEPARTURE TO THAILAND. CONSISTS OF PROMULGATION
OF WARNING AND FRAG ORDERS, ARRIVAL OF AUGMENTEES, PRE-DEPLOYMENT
TRAINING, MISSION BRIEFS, EQUIPMENT PREPARATION AND EMBARKATION.

(2) PHASE lI: DEPLOYMENT TO THAILAND. COMMENCES WITH THE
DEPARTURE OF AIRCRAFT FROM HAWAII AND TERMINATES WITH EMBARKATION
ABOARD AIRCRAFT FOR DEPARTURE TO COUNTRY OF OPERATION. IRT DEPARTS
HICKAM, QUICK TURNS ANDERSEN AFB, GUAM AND ARRIVES U TAPAO, THAILAND,
USUALLY TWO CALENDAR DAYS LATER. IRT THEN PREPARES FOR ONE OR TWO
DAYS PRIOR TO DEPLOYMENT TO COUNTRY OF OPERATION.

(3) PHASE 1lI: DEPLOYMENT TO COUNTRY AND SITE OF OPERATION.
COMMENCES WITH THE DEPARTURE OF AIRCRAFT FROM THAILAND AND
TERMINATES WITH ARRIVAL OF TEAMS IN COUNTRY AT INITAL SITES OF OPERATION.
IRT DEPLOYS TO COUNTRY AS REQUIRED PER FRAG ORDER.

(4) PHASE IV: FIELD OPERATIONS. COMMENCES WITH THE
DESIGNATED FIELD ACTIVITY IN THE HOST NATION (HN) AS DEFINED IN THE
FRAG ORDER, AND TERMINATES WITH THE EMBARKATION OF PERSONNEL AND
EQUIPMENT ABOARD THE LAST AIRCRAFT FOR DEPARTURE BACK TO THAILAND.

(5) PHASE V: RE-DEPLOYMENT TO THAILAND. COMMENCES WITH THE
DEPARTURE OF AIRCRAFT FROM HN AND TERMINATES WITH THE EMBARKATION OF
PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT ABOARD AIRCRAFT FOR DEPARTURE BACK TO HAWAIL.
IRT RE-DEPLOYS TO U TAPAO FOR REPORT WRITING, BLOOD DRAW, EQUIPMENT
MAINTENANCE, PALLET RECONFIGURATION, AND RE-EMBARKATION OF PERSONNEL
AND EQUIPMENT ABOARD AIRCRAFT FOR FLIGHT TO HAWAIL.

(6) PHASE VI: RE-DEPLOYMENT TO HAWAII. COMMENCES WITH THE
DEPARTURE OF AIRCRAFT FROM THAILAND AND TERMINATES WITH THE ARRIVAL
OF PERSONNEL IN HAWAIL. IRT RE-DEPLOYS FROM U TAPAO, QUICK TURNS
ANDERSEN AFB, GUAM, AND ARRIVES HICKAM AFB, HAWAII, USUALLY THE SAME
DAY DEPARTURE.
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(7) PHASE ViI: POST DEPLOYMENT. COMMENCES UPON ARRIVAL IN
HAWAII AND TERMINATES WITH THE DISSEMINATION OF ALL DETAILED REPORTS
OF INVESTIGATIONS AND RECOVERIES AND JFA SUMMARY REPORTS. IRT BREAKS
DOWN PALLET, CONDUCTS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, AND TURNS IN UNIT AND
PERSONAL EQUIPMENT. AUGMENTEES RETURN TO HOME STATION, AFTER ACTION
REPORTS ARE REVIEWED, AND OPERATIONAL REPORTS ARE COMPILED, REVIEWED
AND RELEASED BY JTF-FA/J3.

B. MANEUVER

(1) SRV. FIVE JFAS ARE PLANNED FOR SRV. SRV JFAS USUALLY
CONSIST OF TWO INVESTIGATIVE ELEMENTS, A RESEARCH INVESTIGATION TEAM
(RIT) AND SIX RECOVERY ELEMENTS.

(2) LPDR. FIVE JFAS ARE PLANNED FOR LPDR. THREE JFAS WILL
CONSIST OF ONE INVESTIGATIVE ELEMENT AND THREE RECOVERY ELEMENTS, AND
TWO JFAS WILL CONSIST OF FOUR RECOVERY ELEMENTS. ADDITIONALLY, AN
ARCHIVAL RESEARCH TEAM (ART) WILL DEPLOY AS REQUIRED IN SUPPORT OF
ARCHIVAL PROJECTS.

(3) KOC. JTF-FA WILL CONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS AND SCHEDULE
RECOVERY OPERATIONS AS REQUIRED.

C. TASKS

(1) )1

(A) ISSUE ORDERS AND TRAVEL ADVANCES FOR JTF-FA
PERSONNEL.

(B) ARRANGE FOR COMMERCIAL TRANSPORTATION AS REQUIRED.

(C) PROCESS EMERGENCY LEAVE REQUESTS FOR DEPLOYED JTF-FA
PERSONNEL.

(D) CONDUCT ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSING FOR AUGMENTEES.
COORDINATE ORDERS, ADVANCES, AND TRAVEL WITH UNITS PROVIDING
AUGMENTEE SUPPORT.

(E) COORDINATE WITH USCINCPAC J1 FOR:

((1)) ONE 3510 AUTOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN FOR
DESIGNATED 179 DAY TAD/TDY.
((2)) ONE SGT (E-5) 63W AUTOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC FOR DESIGNATED 30 DAY TAD/TDY.
(2) J2

(A) ANALYZE AND RESEARCH CASE FILES, REPORTS, DOCUMENTS,
ARCHIVAL INFORMATION, WITNESS INTERVIEWS, AND RECOVERED MEDIA IN
ORDER TO GENERATE LEADS AND DETERMINE FATE OF MISSING AMERICANS.

(B) CORRESPOND WITH SERVICE CASUALTY OFFICERS REGARDING
NEW INFORMATION PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC CASES.

(C) IDENTIFY, IN COORDINATION WITH JICPAC/OTC/OSE AND
LEVY INTELLIGENCE REQUIREMENTS TO ENSURE SATISFACTION OF COMMAND
ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF INFORMATION PERTAINING POTENTIAL THREATS.

(D) COORDINATE WITH DPMO TO ENSURE A CLEAR DISTRIBUTION
OF INFORMATION RESPONSIBILITY TO REDUCE AMBIGUITY AND REDUNDANCY.

(E) ENSURE SYSTEMATIC INFORMATION, MATERIAL AND
DOCUMENTATION COLLECTION IN SUPPORT OF MISSION REQUIREMENTS.

(F) SUBMIT STANDING SIGINT REQUIREMENTS OR TACTICAL EVENT
REPORTING SYSTEM REQUESTS TO USCINCPAC/J23.

(G) SUBMIT REQUIREMENTS FOR TIME-SENSITIVE AD HOC AND
STANDING IMAGERY COLLECTION/EXPLOITATION REQUESTS VIA DD1684
FORMATTED MESSAGES.

(H) FORWARD ALL NON-STONY BEACH TIME SENSITIVE HUMINT
COLLECTION REQUIREMENTS FOR VALIDATION TO USCINCPAC J23/J233.

(1) PROCURE HOST NATION ARCHIVE DOCUMENTS AND OTHER
MATERIAL EVIDENCE.

(J) COORDINATE PROCESSING, ANALYSIS AND REPORTING OF
POW/MIA INTELLIGENCE WITH DPMO AND USCINCPAC/J23.

(K) PRODUCE THREE TYPES OF ASSESSMENTS:

((1)) EVALUATIONS OF SOURCE REPORTING.

((2)) EVALUATIONS OF ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWS AND
ARCHIVAL RESEARCH.

((3)) ANALYSIS OF MATERIAL EVIDENCE.
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(L) FORWARD ALL JTF-FA PRODUCED ANALYTICAL PRODUCTS TO
THE FOLLOWING DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES: SECSTATE, SECDEF, NSC, DIA,
JOINT STAFF, USCINCPAC, AMERICAN EMBASSIES HANOI, VIENTIANE AND PHNOM
PENH, CASUALTY OFFICES, JTF-FA DETACHMENTS AND CILHI.

(M) EXERCISE STAFF COGNIZANCE OVER THE ARCHIVAL RESEARCH
TEAM (ART). :

)(N) COORDINATE LIFE SUPPORT TECHNICIAN AUGMENTATION.

(3) J3

(A) PLAN AND EXECUTE OPERATIONS BY DEPLOYING TASK
ORGANIZED FIELD TEAMS TO SE ASIA FOR PERIODS OF APPROXIMATELY 30 DAYS
AND COORDINATE WITH PERMANENTLY BASED DETACHMENTS IN SE ASIA.

(B) ISSUE WARNING ORDERS NO LATER THAN 60 DAYS PRIOR TO
OPERATION AND FRAG ORDERS NO LATER THAN 30 DAYS PRIOR TO OPERATION.

(C) DEVELOP AND PUBLISH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH
JFA.

(D) AT THE CONCLUSION OF EACH JFA, SUBMIT DETAILED
REPORTS OF INVESTIGATIONS, EXCAVATIONS, SUMMARY REPORTS AND REVIEW
ALL AFTER ACTION REPORTS WITHIN 30 DAYS.

(E) SUPERVISE ALL COMMAND AND CONTROL PROCEDURES PER
ANNEX K.

(F) SUPERVISE ALL MEDICAL OPERATIONS PER ANNEX Q.

(G) COORDINATE ALL AMC AIRLIFT AND CHANNEL FLIGHTS
THROUGH PACIFIC AIRLIFT MANAGEMENT OFFICE (PAMO) AND SUPPORT
REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH JFA.

(H) COORDINATE ALL LOAD PLANS AND PALLETIZING FOR ALL
PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT.

(1) PLAN AND COORDINATE ALL JOINT FORENSIC REVIEWS AND
REPATRIATION CEREMONIES IN SRV AND KOC.

(J) PLAN AND COORDINATE PERSONNEL SUPPORT REQUIREMENTS
FOR EACH JFA.

(4) J4

(A) PROVIDE FOR ALL LOGISTICAL AND FISCAL SUPPORT OF JTF
OPERATIONS NOT COVERED BY REF F.

(B) PROVIDE FUNDING SUPPORT FOR CIVILIAN PAYROLL, TRAVEL,

JTF-FA PERSONNEL PER DIEM AND HN SUPPORT COSTS TO INCLUDE SITE
PREPARATION, COMMUNICATION SUPPORT, HELICOPTER CONTRACT COSTS,
LABOR/DRIVERS, SECURITY AND SUPPORT VEHICLES.

(C) ARRANGE FOR INTER SERVICE SUPPORT AGREEMENTS AS
REQUIRED.

(D) COORDINATE AUGMENTEE BILLETING IN HAWAII.

(5) J5

(A) PREPARE, COORDINATE AND EXECUTE TECHNICAL AND
CONSULTATIVE TALKS WITH EACH HN IN PREPARATION FOR JFAS.

(B) SUBMIT WEEKLY SITREPS TO USCINCPAC J5.

(6) PUBLIC AFFAIRS

(A) PREPARE ALL PA GUIDANCE FOR DETACHMENTS AND HIGHER
HEADQUARTERS.

(8) PREPARE MEDIA PREPARATION PACKETS FOR HIGH LEVEL
VISITORS TO JTF-FA OPERATIONS.

(C) COORDINATE ALL MEDIA SUPPORT WITH DETACHMENT
COMMANDERS.

(7) HQ PACAF

(A) COORDINATE AND SCHEDULE ALL USAF SAAM AIRCRAFT
SUPPORT REQUIREMENTS.

(8) PROVIDE CONTINUOUS CAPABILITY FOR AERIAL MEDICAL
EVACUATION CAPABLE OF RECOVERING INJURED PERSONNEL IN THE AO WITHIN
FIVE HOURS.

(C) COORDINATE WITH USCINCPAC AND PROVIDE PRIMARY AND
ALTERNATE INDEPENDENT DUTY TECHNICIANS AS MEDICS AND MEDICAL OFFICERS
FOR DESIGNATED JFAS PER ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8. '

(D) PROVIDE TWO PASSENGER SERVICE PERSONNEL (AIR
TRANSPORTATION SPECIALISTS) TO SUPPORT DAILY OPERATIONS AT UTAPAO.
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TASKED PERSONNEL WILL COORDINATE DAILY WITH UTAPAO ROYAL THAI NAVY
REPRESENTATIVE AND JTF-FA DETACHMENT ONE TO ENSURE ALL TRANSITING
AIRCRAFT, PAX AND CARGO ARE PROPERLY SERVICED, RECEIVED AND PREPARED
FOR DEPARTURE.

(E) PROVIDE TWO FORKLIFTS, ONE STANDARD AND ONE ALL
TERRAIN, TO SUPPORT WAREHOUSE, AND AIRCRAFT LOADING/UNLOADING
OPERATIONS.

(F) PROVIDE COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALISTS QUALIFIED ON LST-5,

THE URC-101 SATCOM SYSTEMS AND THE PRC-132 HF RADIO FOR DESIGNATED
JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(G) PROVIDE LIFE SUPPORT TECHNICIANS FOR DESIGNATED JFAS
IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(8) CINCPACFLT

(A) SUPPORT JTF-FA, UIC R33011, HIGH PRIORITY (0-1)

REQUISITIONS IN MOST EXPEDITIOUS MEANS THROUGH FLEET AND INDUSTRIAL
SUPPLY CENTER, PEARL HARBOR. URGENT OR WALK THROUGH REQUISITIONS
WILL BE GIVEN HIGHEST PRIORITY PROCESSING MEANS AVAILABLE.

(B) COORDINATE WITH USCINCPAC J07 AND PROVIDE PRIMARY AND
ALTERNATE INDEPENDENT DUTY CORPSMEN AND MEDICAL OFFICERS FOR
DESIGNATED JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(C) PROVIDE COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALISTS QUALIFIED ON LST-

5, THE URC-101 SATCOM SYSTEMS AND THE PRC-132 HF RADIO FOR DESIGNATED
JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(D) PROVIDE LIFE SUPPORT TECHNICIANS FOR DESIGNATED JFAS
IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8. ‘

(E) BE PREPARED TO PROVIDE ONE EIGHT-MAN DIVE TEAM
INCLUDING IDC MEDIC TO RECOVER CASE 0952 AND ONE SIX-MAN DIVE TEAM TO
RECOVER CASE s JURING THE 55TH JFA (04MAY-05JUNS9).

(9) CDORUSARPAC

(A) DIRECT USARPAC EXPLOSIVE ORDNANCE DISPOSAL CONTROL
TEAM (EODCT) TO COORDINATE WITH SERVICE COMPONENTS TO PROVIDE EOD
PRIMARY AND ALTERNATE TECHNICIANS FOR DESIGNATED JFAS IAW ANNEX C ,
APPENDIX 8.

(B) PROVIDE REQUIRED NUMBER OF AN/PSS-12 OR EQUIVALENT TO
USARPAC EODCT FOR USE BY EOD AUGMENTEES.

(C) PROVIDE PRIMARY AND ALTERNATE COMMUNICATIONS
SPECIALISTS QUALIFIED ON LST-5, THE URC-101 SATCOM SYSTEMS, AND THE
PRC-132 HF RADIO FOR DESIGNATED JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(D) COORDINATE WITH USCINCPAC J07 TO PROVIDE MEDICAL
OFFICERS FOR DESIGNATED JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(E) SUPPORT JTF-FA PERSONNEL UIC R33011 WITH
ORGANIZATIONAL CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT (OCIE) THROUGH CENTRAL ISSUE
FACILITY (CIF), SCHOFIELD BARRACKS AS REQUIRED. CIF WILL ALLOW JTF
AUGMENTEES MAXIMUM FLEXIBILITY TO RECEIVE AND TURN IN OCIE. AS
REQUIRED, CIF WILL TRANSFER OCIE TO JTF-FA/J4 FOR HN TEAM MEMBERS IN
SUPPORT OF THIS OPERATION.

(10) MARFORPAC. PROVIDE PRIMARY AND ALTERNATE COMMUNICATIONS
SPECIALISTS QUALIFIED ON LST-5, THE URC-101 SATCOM SYSTEMS, AND THE
PRC-132 HF RADIO FOR DESIGNATED JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(11) COMSOCPAC. COORDINATE WITH USCINCPAC J07 TO PROVIDE 18D
MEDICS TO SUPPORT JFAS IAW ANNEX C, APPENDIX 8.

(12) CDRUSACILHI

(A) PROVIDE RECOVERY TEAMS IAW APPENDIX 8, ANNEX C.

(B) CONDUCT JOINT FORENSIC REVIEWS OF REMAINS RECOVERED
IN SRV.

(C) PROVIDE GENERAL AND SPECIFIC EQUIPMENT NECESSARY TO
CONDUCT RECOVERY OPERATIONS.

(D) COORDINATE SPECIAL LOGISTICS/EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS
REQUIRED FOR PALLETIZING AT UTAPO WITH JTF-FA DETS (INFO JTF-FA/J4)

14 DAYS IN ADVANCE OF DEPLOYMENT FROM HAWAIL. ‘

(E) PROVIDE PALLET LOAD PLANS TO JTF-FA/J3AIR NLT D-13.

(13) NCPAC. COORDINATE WITH FT MEADE, SERVICE SUPPORT
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OPERATIONS CENTER AND USCINCPAC J28 FOR FORCE PROTECTION MEASURES.
(14) JTF-FA DETACHMENTS (DETS)

(A) COORDINATE DIPLOMATIC OVER FLIGHT, LANDING, AND
PERSONNEL CLEARANCES FOR THAILAND, SRV, KOC AND LPDR AIRSPACE FOR ALL
AIRCRAFT SUPPORTING JFAS AND REPATRIATION CEREMONIES.

(B) COORDINATE HN HOTEL RESERVATIONS AND GROUND
TRANSPORTATION FOR IRT.

(C) COORDINATE WITH EMBASSIES FOR VISAS, AND WITH DET ONE
FOR THAI IMMIGRATION PASSPORT ENTRY AND EXIT STAMPS.

(D) COORDINATE OPERATIONAL CONCEPTS WITH HN GOVERNMENTS
AND PROPOSE ADJUSTMENTS TO WORK PLAN BASED ON HN APPROVAL.

(E) SUBMIT DAILY AND WEEKLY SITREPS TO CJTF-FA, EOC AND
DETACHMENTS.

(F) PLAN FOR THE RAPID WITHDRAWAL OF JTF-FA PERSONNEL IN
THE EVENT OF HOSTILE, TERRORISTIC, OR EXCESSIVE CRIMINAL ACTIVITY.

(G) ESTABLISH A 24 EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER AND
MONITOR RADIO NETS FOR THE DURATION OF OPERATIONS.

(H) AS REQUIRED, COORDINATE WITH OTHER DETS REGARDING THE
PREPARATION AND MOVEMENT OF WITNESSES, OFFICIALS AND REPRESENTATIVES
FOR BILATERAL AND TRILATERAL INVESTIGATIONS.

(1) SUBMIT JFA SUMMARY REPORTS NLT ENDOP+12.

D. COORDINATING INSTRUCTIONS

(1) COMPONENT COMMANDS PROVIDING PERSONNEL AUGMENTATION
SUPPORT ARE REQUESTED TO PROVIDE WIDEST DISSEMINATION OF APPENDIXES 8
AND 9 OF ANNEX C IN ORDER TO PROVIDE SUPPORTING UNITS WITH SUFFICIENT
WARNING TO MEET ALL DEADLINES FOR PERSONNEL REPORTING, BUDGET
PLANNING, PASSPORT AND MEDICAL REQUIREMENTS.

(2) EOD OPERATIONS WILL BE IAW JTF-FA INST 8000.

(3) DATES OF OPERATIONS FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY UNTIL PUBLIC
ANNOUNCEMENT MADE BY HQ USCINCPAC.

(4) DIRECT LIAISON AUTHORIZED AND ENCOURAGED.

(5) ALL TEAM LEADERS AND SPECIALIZED AUGMENTEES WILL COMPLETE
AFTER ACTION REPORTS AND SUBMIT TO JTF-FA J3 NLT ENDOP+5.

(6) MOVEMENT THROUGHOUT THE PACOM THEATER WILL BE
ACCOMPLISHED THROUGH THE USE OF AMC WHENEVER POSSIBLE.

(7) JFAS ARE PLANNED ON SEVERAL VARIABLES TO INCLUDE
WEATHER, LOGISTICS, SITE ACCESSIBILITY, KNOWN RECOVERY AND PROJECTED
INVESTIGATIVE REQUIREMENTS, AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. JFA DATES AND
TASK ORGANIZATION MAY BE ADJUSTED BASED ON PREVIOUS FIELD ACTIVITIES
OR NEW INFORMATION. CHANGES TO OPLAN FY99 WILL BE IDENTIFIED IN
SUBSEQUENT WARNING AND FRAG ORDERS.

(8) D-DAY IS DAY OF FIRST SORTIE ARRIVAL INTO COUNTRY OF
OPERATION. DATES WILL BE ESTABLISHED AND PUBLISHED FOR EACH
OPERATION IN SUBSEQUENT WARNING AND FRAG ORDERS.

(9) ENDOP IS DAY OF LAST SORTIE DEPARTURE FROM COUNTRY OF
OPERATION.

4. ADMINISTRATION AND LOGISTICS. SEE ANNEX D.
5. COMMAND AND CONTROL. SEE ANNEXES J AND K.
6. ANNEXES:

A. TASK ORGANIZATION - OMITTED

B. INTELLIGENCE

(1) SITUATION